COVER SHEET

- C|S|2/0/0|4|0|3]3(6]3

5.E.C. Registration Number

SIUIN|] |LJI [FIE] [P|R|O[S|P[E|R|I |T|Y] [M|OIN(E]Y

{ Business Address : No. Street City / Town / Province )

Jeanemar S. Talaman - 555-8888
Contact Person ‘ Company Telephona Number '
17-A
1|2 3|1
Month Day FORM TYPE Month Day
Fiscal Year

Annual Meeting

Mutual Fund Company l

Secondary License Type, If Applicable

[T 1] I l

Dept. Requiring this Doc. Amended Articles Number/Section

Total Amount of Borrowings

I | : | |

Total No. of Stockholders : Domestic

Foreign

To be accomplished by SEC Personnel concerned

File Number LCU
LIt T It 11 iTd .

Document 1.D. Cashier
CCTTUTTETAMPS T '

Remarks = pls. use black ink for scanning purposes




SEC Number: 5200403363
File Number:

SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.
(Company's Full Name)

8™ Floor Sun Life Centre 5" Avenue cor Rizal Drive Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City,
Philippines

{Company's Address)

555-88-88

{Telephone No.)

December 31

(Fiscal Year Ending)
{(Month & Day)

SEC FORM 17-A ANNUAL REPORT

Form Type

Amendment Designation (If applicable)

Dacember 31, 2015

Period Ended Date

OPEN-END INVESTMENT COMPANY

Secondary License Type and File Number



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
AMENDED SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF CORPORATION CODE CF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
2. SEC ldentification Number £5200403363 3. BIR Tax Identification No. 230-320-863

4. Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc.

5. Philippines 6. {SEC Use Only)
Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization

7. Sun Life Centre, 5" Avenue cor Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City 1634
Address of principal office Postal Code

8. (02) 555-8888

Registrant's telephone number, including area code

9. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the
RSA :

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding

! 362,398,439 shares
pai_ LA s dimi A AN LAl LA A4
Common Shares, PHP 0.01 Par Value (as of December 31, 2015)

10 Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Yes O ' No X
11. Check whether the registrant;
{a) Has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rute 17 thereunder
or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months {(or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports).

Yes X No ]
(b) Has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes X ‘ No [:}
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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL iNFORMATION

Item 1. Business

The Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc. (the “Fund”) is a registered open-end
investment company under the Investment Company Act (R.A. 2629) and the Securities
Regulation Code {R.A. 8799). It was incorporated on March 5, 2004 under SEC Registration No.
CS5200403363. !t is engaged in the sale of its shares of stock and investment of the proceeds in
Peso-denominated fixed income and other related securities of the Philippine Government and
commercial papers issued by corporations within the Philippines, certificate of deposits, and other
Peso-denominated short-term instruments.

Sun Life Asset Management Company, Inc. (*SLAMCI™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sun Life of
Canada (Philippines), In¢., (“SLOCPI”) acts as the Fund Manager and Principal Distributor.
Below are the percentage of contribution of Interest Income and Miscellaneous Income to Total
Revenues as of December 31, 2015. '

[

Interest Income from Bank Deposit 0.23%
Interest Income from SSA 24 66%
Interest Income from Treasury Bills 8.55%
Interest Income from Treasury Notes 26.64%
Interest Income from Bonds 33.93%

The Fund's objective is to generate income in Philippine Pesos consistent with prudent
management of the Fund's assets.

The Fund was incorporated on March 05, 2004 with 100,000,000 authorized shares at a par value.
of PHP0.01 per share.

On October 27, 2006, The Board of Directors’ approved the blanket increase of the Company's
authorized share capital up to 100,000,000,000 shares.

On April 24, 2007, the Board of Directors’ approved the first tranche of increase of the Company's
authorized share capital by 300,000,000 shares (from 100,000,000 shares to 400,000,000 shares
both with par of P0.01}, which was subsequently approved by the SEC on January 14, 2010 and
the registration statement on March 11, 2014,

On October 6, 2011, the Board of Directors approved the second tranche of increase of the
Company's authorized share capital by, 600,000,000 shares (from 400,000,000 shares to
100,000,000,000 shares both with par value of P0.01)

On April 29, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the increase in the Company's authorized
capital stock of 600,000,000 shares (from 400,000,000 shares to 100,000,000,000 shares both
with par value of P0.01). The increase will be implemented by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and President of SLAMCI acting jointly in tranches.

On November 10, 2015, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the President of SLAMCI
jointly autheorized the increase of 5,600,000,000 shares (from 400,000,000 shares to
6,000,000,000 shares both with par value of P0.01 per share).

As at December 31, 2015, the Company is still in the progess of completing the requirements for
the approval of the increase in the SEC and the registration of the 5,600,000,000 additional
shares.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company has 400,000,000 authorized shares with a par value of
P0.01 per share.

On March 14, 2016 the SEC approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital of 5.6
Billion shares.
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The Fund's common shares are available through SLAMCI's registered representatives and
eligible securities dealers that have entered into an agreement with SLAMCI to sell shares.

The Fund is part of the eleven (11) Sun Life Prosperity Funds which offer excellent value to
investors as a result of SLAMCI's collective experience in fund management, strong investment
philosophy, remarkable investment performance and strong organizational structure. However, it
should be noted that past performance of any fund manager is no guarantee of future results. It is
only an indication of their capabilities to deal with rapid changes in the economy and market
conditions in the future.

The Sun Life Prosperity Funds make investing simple, accessible and affordable. The Sun Life
Prosperity Funds offer a unique “family of funds” to choose from. The “family of funds" concept
allows investors to medify their investment strategies over time, by letting them transfer from one
fund to ancther, as their needs dictate, as much as four times a year without paying any fees.

The financial statements have been prepared on histeorical-cost basis, except for financial assets
carried either at fair value or at amortized cost. The first adoption of PAS 32 and PAS 39 in the
2006 audited financial statements resulted in the classification of investments in fixed income
securities other than corporate loans as “financial assets at fair value through profit and loss” and
its measurement at fair value with the fair value changes reflected in the statements of
comprehensive income. Fair value changes therefore affect the ratios related to the Fund's total
comprehensive income. The change to marked-to-market thus provides equitable treatment
between investors coming in and out of the Fund.

Money Market Funds are mutual funds in\'festing in short-term debt instruments, including but not
limited to, Treasury Bills, Commercial Papers, Treasury Notes and Treasury Bonds maturing
within one year.

The Fund participates in the mutual funds sector which is a sub-sector of the financial services
industry. There are no national geographical houndaries as the nature of the industry and
prevailing technology make it possible for the various players to offer their services to almost any
place in the country.

The Fund principally competes directly with the Unit Investment Trust Funds (*UITFs") offered by
commercial banks and other mutual funds in the Philippines, namely: ALFM Money Market Fund
Inc. and Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc. However, the Fund does not have any knowledge on
the relative size, financial and market strengths of the Fund's competitors. The Fund principally
competes in terms of returns and the associated risks of the return. The principal methods of
competition are the over-all returns on the investment product, the after-sales service support
provided by the administration, and the various fees levied by the Fund,

The Fund's market strength is its wide distribution network that provides strategic distribution of
Fund shares and the financial stability and reputation of its Investment Company Adviser. The
Fund intends to compete principally based on the reputation of SLAMCI for superior investment
performance and corporate governance coupled with its distribution network and superior
backroom operations.

The Fund does not employ perscnnel. Day-to-day operations of the Fund are carried out by
SLAMCI governed by the terms and conditions of the Management Agreements between SLAMCI
and the Funds.

There are many potential advantages to investing in mutua! funds and in the Offer Shares.
However, in deciding to invest, the investor is strongly advised to also consider the risks involved
in investing in mutual funds, and in the Offer Shares, as well as the risks that the Fund faces,
given its underlying assets whose respective values essentially affect the Fund’s overall net asset
value.
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Market Risk: Interest Rate Risk is a type of Market Risk which is applicable to the Fund's
investments in bonds, if any, This refers to the increasel/decrease of a bond price due to
movement in market factors such as changes in interest rates. A change in interest rates is
the period when interest rates rise or fall thus causing the decline or increase in the market
price of the bonds held by the Fund, if any. This risk is minimized by closely monitoring the
direction of interest rates and aligning it with the appropriate strategy of the Fund.

Credit Risk: Investments in bonds carry the risk that the issuer of the bonds might default
on its interest and principal paymenis. In the event of default, the Fund's value will be
adversely affected and may resuit in a write-off of the concerned asset held by the Fund. To
mitigate the risk, each Issuer/Borrower/Counterparty passes through a stringent credit
process to determine whether its credit quality complies with the prescribed standards of the
Fund. Further, the credit quality of the Issuer/Borrower/Counterparty is reviewed periodically
to ensure that excellent credit standing is maintained. Moreover, a 10% exposure limit to a
single entity is likewise observed.

Liquidity Risk: The Fund is usually able to service redemptions of investors within seven
(7) banking days after receipt of the notice of redemption by paying out redemptions from
available cash or near cash assets in its portfolio. However, when redemptions exceed the
Funds available cash or near cash assets in its portfolio, the Fund will have to sell its other
security holdings; and during periods of extreme market volatility, the Fund may not be able
to find a buyer for such assets. Consequently, the Fund may not be able to generate
sufficient cash from its sale of assets to meet the redemptions within the normal seven (7)
banking day period. To mitigate this, the Fund maintains adequate highly liquid assets in the
form of cash, cash equivalents and near cash assets in its portfolio. As the Fund's portfolio
is composed of liquid assets, liquidity risk is deemed low.

The following are additional risks present in managing the Fund, however, non-quantifiable.

Regulatory Risk: The Fund's investments and operations are subject to various regulations
affecting among others, accounting of assets and taxation. These regulations occasionally
change, and may result in lower returns or even losses borne by the investors. For example,
a higher tax imposed on the sale or purchase of underlying assets of the Fund may result in
lower net asset value of the Fund. To mitigate this risk, SLAMCI adopts global best
practices. Further, it maintains regufar communications with the relevant government
agencies to keep itself abreast of the issues giving them concern, and to have the
opportunity to help them set standards for good governance. SLAMC! also takes an active
participation in the Philippine Investment Funds Association, inc. ("PIFA"), an association of
mutual fund companies in the Philippines.

Non-guarantee: Unlike deposits made with banks, an investment in the Fund is neither
insured nor guaranteed by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation ("PDIC"). Hence,
investors carry the risk of losing the value of their investment, without any guaranty in the
form of insurance. Moreover, as with any investment, it is important to note that past
performance of the Fund does not guarantee its future success.

Dilution Risk: Being an open-end mutual fund, various investors may effectively subscribe
to any amount of shares of the Fund. As such, investors face the risk of their investments
being diluted as more investors subscribe to shares of the Fund. The influence that the
investors can exert over the control and management of the Fund decreases proportionately.

Large Transaction Risk: If an investor in a Fund makes a large transaction, the Fund's
cash flow may be affected. For example, if an investor redeems a large number of shares of
a Fund, that Fund may be forced to sell securities at unfavorable prices to pay for the
proceeds of redemption. This unexpected sale may have a negative impact on the net asset
value of the Fund.

Fund Manager Risk: The performance of the Fund is also dependent on the Fund
Manager's skills. Hence, the Fund may underperform in the market and/or in comparison
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with similar funds due to investment decisions made by the Fund Manager, and may also fail
to meet the Fund’s investment objectives. The Board of Directors of the Issuer, however,
shall ensure that all investment policies and restrictions enumerated in this Prospectus are
strictly followed. ‘

The above risk factors are by no means exhaustive. New and/or unidentified risks may arise
given the fast changing financial markets and economic environment.

Classification of the Fund into high, moderate or low risk investment: In furtherance of its
investment objective, that is, to generate income in Philippine Pesos consistent with prudent
management of the Fund's assets, the Fund's portfolic may consist of fixed income and other
related securities of the Philippine Government, and commercial papers issued by corporations
within the Philippines, certificates of deposits, and other short-term instruments. Considering the
nature of the aferementioned investments, the Fund is classified as a low-risk investment.

Item 2. Properties

The Fund has financial assets in the form of cash and fixed income securities only. As prescribed
by SEC Rules, all of its assets are held by its custodian banks, the Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation {(HSBC), Deutsche Bank and Citibank.

Office space of the Fund is provided by SLAMCI pursuant to the Management Agreement
between them. The Fund does not intend to acquire any real property in the course of its
business. : :

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

There is no material pending legal proceeding to which the Fund or any of its affiliates is a party,
or of which any of their property is the subject.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On November 20, 2015, the Fund held the continuation of its annual stockholders' meeting. In
said meeting, the amendment of Article Il of the Articles of Incorporation, or the amendment of
the principal office address to comply with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2014, was
not approved for failure to meet the required vote of at least 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock as
of 31 Cctober 2015.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
1. Market Information
The shares of the Fund are traded over-.the-counter. The Fund's common stocks are available

through registered representatives and eligible securities dealers that have entered into an
agreement to sell shares with the Fund's Principal Distributor, SLAMCI.
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The following table shows the ranges of high and low prices (NAVPS) of the Fund’'s common
shares for each gquarter within the last two calendar years:

2015 2014
High Low High Low
a 1.1269 11262 1.1261 1.1252
Q2 1.1299 - 1.1269 1.1257 1.1254
Q3 1.1344 . 1.1299 1.1262 1.1254
Q4 1.1397 1.1345 1.1266 1.1252

The Fund's NAVPS is published daily through Business World, PSE Website, Philippine Daily
Inquirer and Sun Life Websites.

2, Holders
The Fund has approximately 2,517 shareholders as of December 31, 2015,

On 7 March 2013, SEC en banc approved the confidential treatment of the list of Top 20
sharehelders of the Fund, including the 5% and 10% beneficial owners. This is to protect the
investors’ privacy, which is a privilege they enjoy when they invest in other shared investment
vehicles, such as unit investment trust funds, and when they invest in bank deposits.

3. Dividends

The Fund has not declared cash dividends to date. Stock dividends of two percent (2%) as of
record date were declared in 2008, 2007 and 2008.

The Beard of Directars of the Fund has the power to fix and determine the amount to be reserved
or provided for declaration and payment of dividends from the Fund's unrestricted retained
eamings. The amount of such dividends (either in cash, stock, property or a combination of the
foregoing) will depend on the Fund's profits, cash flows, capital expenditure, financial condition,
and other factors. The existence of surplus profit arising from the operation of the Fund is needed
before a dividend can be declared. The surplus profits or income must be a hona fide income
founded upon actual earnings or profits. Actual earnings or profits shall be the net income for the
year based on the audited financial statements, adjusted for unrealized items, which are
considered not available for dividend declaration.

Cash dividends and property dividends may be declared by the Board of Directors and no
stockholder approval is required. Stock dividends paid on the Offer Shares are subject to
approval by both the Board of Directors and the stockholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3)
of the outstanding capital stock of the Fund at a stockholders' meeting called for such purpose.

Under the Corporation Code, Corporations with surplus profit in excess of 100% of its paid-in
capital stock are required to declare dividends (cash or stock) and distribute it to its stockholders.

Dividends so declared will be automatically reinvested in additiona! shares on behalf of the
shareholders, without sales charges, at the NAVPS on the payment date established for such
dividends. Shareholders may also elect not to have dividends reinvested and receive payment in
cash, net of tax.

b
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Item 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.
The Performance of the Fund could be measured by the following indicators:

1. Increase/Decrease in Net Assets Value per Share (NAVPS.) NAVPS is computed by
dividing net assets (total assets less total liabilities) by the total number of shares issued
and outstanding plus the total number of units outstanding due to deposit for future
subscriptions (DFFS) and for conversion to shares, if any, as of the end of the reporting
day. Any increase or decrease in NAVPS translates to a prospective capital gain or
capital loss, respectively, for the Fund's shareholders.

2. Net Investment Income. Represents the total earnings of the Fund from its investment
securities, less operating expenses and income tax. This gauges how efficiently the Fund
has utilized its resources in a given time period.

3. Assets Under Management {AUM}. These are the assets under the Fund's disposal.
This measures investor confidence (increase/decrease brought about by investor
subscriptions/redemptions) as well as the growth of the Fund (increase/decrease brought
about by its operational income and market valuation of its assets and liabilities).

4. Cash Flow. Determines whether the Fund was able to achieve the optimal level of
liquidity by being able to meet all its scheduled payments, while maintaining at the same
time the maximum investments level and minimum cash level.

Accounting Policies on Financial Assets as at FVTPL

Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognized in the Company’'s financial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are recognized
initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of all financial
assets, except for investments classified as at FVTPL. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL,
held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initia! recognition.

The Company's financial assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of financial assets at
FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables.

Financial assets at FVTPL

The Company classifies financial assets as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for
trading or designated as such upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

+ itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if: |
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e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

= the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and it is
permitted that the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resulting gain or loss recognized in
profit or loss.

The Company's financial assets classified under this category include investments in special
savings deposits and Investments in Unit Investment Trust Fund {UITF).

FINANCIAL MARKETS REVIEW (2015)

INVESTMENT APPROACH

The investment mandate of the fund is focused on peso-denominated government and corporate
fixed income securities which deliver both accrual income and capital gains. Interest rate risk
exposure is managed through portfolio duration relative to that of the benchmark. Credit risk, on
the other hand, is managed through a stringent adjudication process on a group level. Optimum
levels of cash are maintained to support invesiment and client liquidity requirements.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Philippine government securities came firing on all cylinders as the markets opened the year with
the strongest start in two years. The yields of FXTN 20-17 and FXTN 10-59, two of the most liquid
bonds in the roster, plunged by 100 bps and 50 bps respectively. Demand was fueled by
expansionary monetary policy both locally and globally, as well as benign inflation due to low oil
and commodity prices.

Towards the second quarter of the year, an assortment of geopolitical risks offshore (the Greek
debt crisis and tensions between Ukraine and Russia), as well as a change in the US Federal
Reserve's tone regarding monetary policy, unsettled global markets and among the hardest hit
were emerging market assets. The peso government securities market likewise reeled from the
risk aversion and returned more than half of its gains made in the year. Trading volume also
decelerated as most players opted to remain in the sidelines as most were unsure where rates
were headed.

The non-restricted trading environment was launched towards the middle of the year, although,
more than anything, this was met with reservations as it took a bit of time to assimilate some
technical processes. This also took away some daily trading volume off the market.

The Bureau of Treasury finally rolled out its liability management exercise in August and this
yielded two new securities, a benchmark 10-year and 25-year bond with coupons of 3.625% and
4.625%. Via the debt swap, the Fund effectively took out a significant chunk of illiquid securities in
its portfolio. Despite the improved constituents in the portfolio, thin trading volumes in the market,
especially in the last quarter of the year, added volatility to the pricing of the bonds and
consequently added volatility to the net asset value of the Fund.

For the majority of the year, the fund positioned its duration anywhere between neutral to
overweight as inflation remained docile on account of plunging oil and commodity prices as well
as global rates hovering near zero.
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OUTLOOK

in tune with global yields, peso short-term rates are expected to commence upward through the
course of the year. However, the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas is not expected to keep in pace with
the US Federal Reserve as inflation as well as growth remains below trend.

Mid-year, the BSP is expected to introduce a new scheme in its suite of monetary policy tools —
the term deposit auction (or alternatively, the interest rate corridor). This should contribute an
upward thrust on short-term rates (which is currently pegged at SDA rates) and consequently,
bank products — deposits and loans, other money market securities, as well as government and
corporate securities.

On balance, 2016 will be a challenging year for peso government securities, as well as fixed
income instruments in general. The recurring strategy for the year should be prudent
management of portfolio interest rate risk and this will be done by shifting away from deriving
returns through capital gains and gearing towards accrual income.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANALYSIS

The Fund registered significant increase in net assets from PHP233 Million in 2014 to PHP6.6
Billion in 2015, The increase is mainly due to acceptance of deposits for future stocks
subscriptions during the year,

Net Profit has materially increased to PHP21t Million compared to last year's PHP47 Thousand.
The significant increase is due to realized and unrealized gain on investments and higher interest
income on held-to-maturity investments and special savings deposit.

The Fund does not foresee any event that could trigger a direct or contingent financial obligation
that is material to its operations. No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements,
obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Fund with
unconsolidated entities/other persons were created during the reporting period. There are also no
known trends, events, or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net salesirevenuesfiincome from continuing
operations and liquidity.

Material Changes in the 2015 Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position
{
Cash increased by 226% from PHP13.,5 Million in 2014 to PHP44 Million in 2015.

Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) increased by PHP4.8 Billion from
PHP143 Million in 2014 to PHP4.9 Billion in 2015,

Held-to-Maturity (HTM} Investments increased by PHP1.4 Million from PHP83 Million in 2014 to
PHP1.5 Billion in 2015.

Increases in FVTPL and HTM were brought about by invested funds in Special Savings Deposits,
Treasury Notes and Private Bonds from clients’ subscriptions. Starting 2™ Quarter of 2015, the
Fund also invested in UITFs which also contributed to the increase.

Accrued interest Receivable increased from PHP740 Thousand to PHP28 Million. Increase is
mainly due to accrued interest from Fixed Income investments. Collection of accrued interest
receivable depends on the scheduled intelrest payments of each asset held.

Drop in Accrued Expenses and other payables by PHP 5.7 Million from PHP8.7 Million in 2014 to
PHP3 Million in 2015 were mainly due to lower outstanding balance of Proceeds Payable to
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Investors. These are amounts payable to investors for redemption of their investments processed
on or before end of reporting period, which are usually paid one day from the transaction date.

Payable to Fund Manager increased from PHP690 Thousand to PHP2 Miliion due to increase in
management fees brought about by higher AUM.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Increase in revenue of PHP26 Million from PHP4.5 Million to PHP30.1 Million was attributable
mainly to the higher interest income earned from fixed income investments as a result of higher
purchases made during the year.

Increase in Operating Expenses of PHP5 Million from PHP3 Million to PHP8 Million was mainly
from higher management fees brought about by higher asset under management and higher
custody fees paid for safekeeping of investments.

Net profit for the period ended at PHP21 Millien. Higher by PHP20.9 Million compared to PHP47
Thousand net profit of same period last year.

Statement of Changes in Equity

Total equity increased by 6.33 Billion from PHP233 Million in 2014 to PHP8.56 Billion in 2015.
Item?7. Financial Statements

Copies of the following audited financial statements are attached as Exhibits:

Statements of Financial Position, 2015, 2014

Statements of Comprehensive Income, 2015, 2014, 2013

Statements of Changes in Equity, 2015, 2014, 2013

Statements of Cash Flows, 2015, 2014, 2013
Notes to Financial Statements

Nhrwn

ltem 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Navarro Amper & Co./Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, with address at 19/F Net Lima Plaza, 5"
Avenue corner 26" Street, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City, Philippines, has acted as external
auditor since the Fund started operations in 2004.

There has been no disagreement with the accountants on any accounting and financial
disclosures.

External Audit Services/Audit and Audit-Related Fees

For 2015 and 2014, ‘aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by the external
auditor for the audit of the Fund’s annua! financial statements and services normally provided by
external auditors in connection with statutory and regulatory filings amounted to PHP91,107 and
PHP87,360, respectively, inclusive of VAT and out-of-pocket expenses. There were no other
payments made to the auditor for any other service, including assurance, tax and related
services.

External auditors of the Fund are designated in accordance with Section 29 of the Investment
Company Act subject to ratification at the annual stockholders' meeting by the vote of a majority
of the outstanding voting securities attending.
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The Fund’s Board of Directors has an Audit and Compliance Committee, which is composed of
Mr. Melito S. Salazar, Jr. (independent director) as Chairman, and Atty. Aleli Angela G. Quirino
(independent director} and Ms. Rizalina G. Mantaring as members. The Audit and Compliance
Committee has considered and endorsed for the approval of the Beard of Directors the external
auditor's service fees, which were so approved.

PART Ili - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers
1. Directors and Executive Officers
The Board of Directors is responsible for conducting all businesses of the Fund. It exercises
general supervision over the duties performed by the investment Company Adviser, Distributor,

Administrator, Transfer Agent and Custodian of the Fund.

The following are the incumbent Directors and Executive Officers of the Fund:

Name Citizenship Position Age Tg;gnc:f ;::‘ir:‘;
;i::::‘r?ng Filipino ' Director/Chairman | 56 pzrgg;‘“ 8 terms
Benedicto C. Sison Fxﬁiggczr:‘d Director/President 55 pig;f;t 1 term
Valerie N. Pama Filipino ‘ Director 52 p?gg;r-nt 6 terms
Qurine 2 & Filipino oo A pl:gg:;t 12terms
Oscar S, Reyes Filipino '"ﬁf:&gfnt 69 pzrgéc:r-'nt 4 terms
Candy S. Esteban Chinese Treasurer 38 p:ig;esat 1 term
Comanis. Fipino Comorate | 4 | 2995 " igteme
gl:rrii: Cecilia V. Filipino Asst. Corp. Sec. 398 ;;?rg;zr;t 3 terms
g?:;g:;na DL Filipino Compliance Officer 48 pig;:;t 2terms

A brief write-up on the business experience of the incumbent directors and executive officers of
Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc. follows:

RIZALINA G. MANTARING
Director/Chairman {2007 to present}

Ms. Mantaring, 56, Filipino, is currently the Chairman of the nine Sun Life Prosperity Funds ie.,
Sun Life of Canada Prosperity Bond Fund, Inc., Sun Life of Canada Prosperity Balanced Fund,
Inc., Sun Life of Canada Prosperity Philippine Equity Fund, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity Dollar
Advantage Fund, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity Dollar Abundance Fund, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity GS
Fund, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity Dynamic Fund,
Inc.,Sun Life Prosperity Philippine Stock Index Fund, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity Dollar Wellspring
Fund, Inc., and Sun Life Prosperity World Voyager Fund, Inc. (the “11 Sun Life Prosperity
Funds"), She is also the Chairman of the Grepalife Dollar Bond Fund Corporation, Grepalife

|
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Balanced Fund Corporation, and Grepalife Fixed Income Fund Corporation (*Grepalife Funds"y
(2011 to present). She serves as the President & CEO of Sun Life of Canada (Philippines), Inc.
(*SLOCPI") (2009 to present), Sun Life Financial Plans, Inc. (“SLFPI") {2009 to present) and, a
Director of the Sun Life Asset Management Company, Inc. (*SLAMCI™) (2007 to present). Ms.
Mantaring is Independent Director of Ayala Land, Inc. and Microventures Foundation, Inc. Prior
to the foregoing, Ms. Mantaring was Deputy President of the Sun Life Financial Philippines group
of companies (2009) and Regional Chief Operations Officer of Sun Life Financial Asia (2008 to
2008). She also served as Chief Operating Officer of SLOCPI (1999 to 2008) and Information
Systems Head, Asia Pacific Division of the Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada (1992 to
1998). Ms. Mantaring received her Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering (cum laude)
from the University of the Philippines and Master of Science in Computer Science from the State
University of New York at Albany. She is also a Fellow, Life Management Institute {with
distinction) and Associate, Customer Service (with honors).

BENEDICTO C. SISON
President and Director {2015 to present)

Mr. Sison, 55, is President of the 11 Sun Life Prosperity Funds. He is also the Chief Financial
Management and Strategy Officer of Sun Life in the Philippines. Before returning to the
Philippines, Mr. Sison was the Chief Financial Officer of Sun Life Financial - Asia based in Hong
Kong from 2012 to 2015. Prior to joining Sun Life in 2010 as Chief Financia! Officer, Mr. Sison
served as Finance Director - Asia Pacific of ConAgra International Food Group (2006 to 2010Q).
He earmned a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration (magna cum laude) from the
University of the Philippines (Diliman) in 1983 and a Master's in Business Administration from the
University of California Riverside in 1988, He is a certified public accountant {CPA), a Chartered
Global Management Accountant (CGMA), and a member of the American institute of CPAs
(AICPA).

VALERIE N. PAMA
Director (2011 to present) /President (2011-2012)

Ms. Pama, 52, Filipino, is currently a Director of the 8 Sun Life Prosperity Funds andof the
Grepalife Funds i.e. Grepalife Dollar ‘Bond Fund Corporation, Grepalife Balanced Fund
Corporation, and Grepalife Fixed Income Fund Corporation (2011 to present). Ms. Pama was
formerty the President of the Sun Life Prosperity Funds and the Grepalife Funds (2011 to 2012).
She also served as the Chief Operating Officer of Sun Life Asset Management Company, Inc.
{2011 to 2012) before being appointed as its President in 2013. Ms. Pama is a veteran banker,
having been in the industry for more than 20 years. She started her career with Citibank N.A. in
1890 as a Management Associate. By the time she retired from Citibank N.A. in 2008, Ms. Pama
was the President of Citicorp Financial Services and Insurance Brokerage Inc. Prior to joining
Sun Life, Ms. Pama was a product 'development consultant for ING Bank's Investment
Management Group. Ms. Pama has held the chairmanship of the Philippine Investment Funds
Association (PIFA) since 2011. Ms. Pama is a graduate of the Ateneo de Manila University with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Management Engineering. She obtained her MBA in International
Business and Finance, with a minor in Business Economics from Katholieke Universiteit Leuven
in Belgium. On her sophomore year in MBA, she was awarded With Distinction by the university
for her exemplary academic performance.

ALELI ANGELA G. QUIRINO
Independent Director (2004 to present)

Atty, Quirino, 71, Filiping, is an Independent Director of Sun Life of Canada Prosperity Balanced
Fund, Inc. (2009 to present), Sun Life of Canada Prosperity Bond Fund, Inc. (2000 to present),
Sun Life of Canada Money Market Fund, Inc. (2004 to present), Sun Life Prosperity Dynamic
Fund, Inc. (2012 to present). She is also an Independent Director of the Grepalife Dollar Bond
Fund Corporation, Grepalife Bond Fund Corporation, and Grepalife Fixed Income Fund
Corporation (“Grepalife Funds”) (2011 to present). She is currently a Senior Counsel of Angara
Abello Concepcion Regala & Cruz Law Offices (ACCRA Law) (2010). She also serves as
Treasurer of ACCRAIN Holdings Corp. (2010) and as Director-Treasurer of SysNet Integrators,
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Inc. (2001 to present), EP2, Inc. {2003 to present), Ideawurx Inc. (2001 to present), and the
Intellectual Property Foundation, Inc. (1998 to present), among others. She also serves as a
Director of Fila Philippines, Inc. (1993 to present), Anglo-Eastern Crew Management (Phils.), Inc.
(1999 to present), Hazama Philippines, Inc. (1995 to present), LNC (SPV}-AMC Corp. (2005 to
present), LNC 3 Asset Management, Inc: (2006 to present), Plaka Athena Holdings Corporation
(2005 to present) and New Pacific Resources Management (SPV-AMC), In¢. (2007 to present).
She is the Chairman of the Intellectual Property Association of the Philippines (2009 to present),
President of the Atenec Law Alumni Foundation, Inc. (2008 to present) and Trustee-Corporate
Secretary of Assumption College, Inc. (1996 to present). Atty. Quirino received her Bachelor of
Arts and Bachelor of Science in Education {(magna cum laude) from Assumption College and
Bachelor of Laws (with honors) from the Ateneo de Manila University.

OSCAR S. REYES
independent Director (2011 to present)

Mr. Reyes, 69, Filipino, is Independent Director of the Sun Life Prosperity Dollar Abundance
Fund, Inc. (2004 to present), Sun Life Prosperity Dollar Advantage Fund, Inc. (2002 to present),
Sun Life of Canada Prosperity GS Fund, inc. (2011 to present), Sun Life Prosperity Money Market
Fund, Inc. (2011 to present), Sun Life of Canada Prosperity Bond Fund, Inc, (2011 to present),
and Sun Life Prosperity Dynamic Fund, Inc. (2012 to present). He is also an Independent
Director of the Grepalife Dollar Bond Fund Corporation, Grepalife Balanced Fund Corporation,
and Grepalife Fixed Income Fund Corporation (2011 to present). His other positions are:
member of the Advisory Board and Director of the Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company
(since 2005) and of the Board of Directors of the Bank of the Philippine Islands (since 2003),
Manila Water Co., Inc. (since 2005), Pepsi Cola Products Philippines, Inc. {since 2007), PLDT
Communications and Energy Ventures, Inc., Basic Energy Corporation (since 2007), Cosco
Capital Inc. (since 2008) and Sun Life Financial Plans, Inc., among other firms. He is a Director of
Manila Electric Company (since 2010} where he also holds the position of President and Chief
Executive Officer. He is also President of Meralco PowerGen Corporation and Chairman of
Meralco Industriat Engineering Services Corporation (MIESCOR), CIS Bayad Center, Meralco
Energy, Inc. (MEI), Redondo Peninsula Energy, Inc., Miescorrrait Inc. and PacificLight Pte. Ltd.
He served as Country Chairman of the Shell Companies in the Philippines and concurrently
President of Pilipinas Shelt Petroleurm Corporation and Managing Director of Shell Philippines
Exploration B.V. He is a member of the Board of Trustees of One Meralco Foundation, Inc.,
Pilipinas Shell Foundation, Inc., SGV Foundation, Inc. and El Nido Foundation, Inc. He
completed his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics at the Ateneo de Manila University in 1965
(Cum Laude) and did post-graduate studies at the Atenec Graduate School of Business, Waterloo
Lutheran University and the Harvard Business School.

CANDY S, ESTEBAN
Treasurer (2015 to present)

Ms. Esteban, 38, is Treasurer of the 11 Sun Life Prosperity Funds and the Sun Life Asset
Management Company, Inc. She is concurrently the Head of Financial Planning and Analysis for
Sun Life of Canada (Philippines), Inc. Prior to joining the Fund, Ms. Esteban held various
positions in Citibank and American Express Bank Philippines, both leading global banking
institutions. She is a graduate of the Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Management Engineering and she holds a Master's degree in Business Administration
from INSEAD in Singapore and France.

JEMILYN S. CAMANIA
Corporate Secretary (2005 to present)

Atty. Camania, 40, Filipino, is also the Co!rporate Secretary of SLOCPI (2010 to present), SLFPI
(2010 to present), SLAMCI (2005 to present), Sun Life Financial Philippines Holding Co., Inc.
(2012), Sun Life Financial-Philippines Foundation, Inc. (2012), the 11 Sun Life Prosperity Funds

{2005 to present), GAMC (2011 to present), Great Life (2012), and the 3 Grepalife Funds (2011 to
present). She alsc serves as Assistant Co'rporate Secretary of SLGFI (2012). She started at Sun
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Life as Assistant Counsel (2004), became its Counsel {2007 to 2011) and Senior Counsel (2011
to 2012). She is currently Sun Life's Deputy General Counsel (2012 to present). Prior to joining
Sun Life, she was an Associate at the Cayetanc Sebastian Ata Dado & Cruz Law Offices (2001 to
2004), Atty. Camania received her Bachelor of Arts in Psychology (1996) and Bachelor of Laws
(2001) from the University of the Philippines. She was called to the Bar in 2002. She is also a
Fellow, Life Management Institute (2010) and Professional, Customer Service (with honors)
{2011) of LOMA,

MARIA CECILIA V. SORIA
Assistant Corporate Secretary (2013 to present)

Atty. Soria, 39, Filiping, is the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the 11 Sun Life Prosperity Funds
(September 2013 to present), and the 3 Grepalife Funds (September 2013 to present), SLAMCI,
GAMC, Sun Life Financial Philippines Holding Company, Inc., and Sun Life Financial-Philippines
Foundation, Inc. Prior to joining these companies, she worked as Associate, later promoted to
Senior Associate, at Tan Venturanza Valdez (May 2010 to August 2013), as Senior Associate at
Reyes-Fajardo and Associates (2009 to 2010) and SGV & Co. (2008 to 2009), as Associate at
Medialdea Ata Bello &Guevarra (2007-2008), and as Executive Assistant 6 at the Civil Service
Commission (2006-2007). Atty. Soria received her Bachelor of Arts in Political Science and
Bachelor of Laws from the University of the Fhilippines. She was admitted to the Philippine Bar in
May 2007.

CONCHITINA D.L. GREGORIO
Compliance Officer (2014 to present)

Atty. Gregorio, 49, Filipino, is the Chief Compliance Officer of SLOCPI, SLFPI, SLAMCI, the 11
Sun Life Prosperity Funds, SLGFI, GAMC, Great Life, and the 3 Grepalife Funds. Before joining
Sun Life, Atty. Gregorio headed the Compliance Department of Metrobank Card Corporation
where she implemented the company's programs on compliance, money laundering & terrorist
financing prevention and corporate governance. Atty. Gregorio also spent a number of years as a
capital markets specialist and held legal and compliance reles in both the Philippine Stock
Exchange and Fixed-Income Exchange. Atty. Gregorio received her Juris Doctor Degree from the
Ateneo de Manila University and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1992.

2. Significant Employees
The Fund has no significant employees.
3. Family Relationships !

There are no family relationships up to fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity
among directors, executive officers, or persons nominated by the Fund to become its directors or
executive officers.

4. Material Pending Legal Proceedings

The Fund has no knowledge of any material pending legal proceedings to which any of the
directors and executive officers of the Fund is a party of which any of their property is the subject.

The Fund has no knowledge of any material pending legal proceedings, for the past five (5) years
and to date, to which any of the directors and executive officers of the Fund is a party of which
any of their property is the subject.

There was no bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which any of the directors
and executive officers of the Fund was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of
bankruptcy or within 2 years prior to that time.
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No director or executive officer of the Fund was convicted by final judgment in a c¢riminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign, and neither is any director or officer subject to any pending
criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic viclations and other minor offenses.

No director or executive officer of the Fund is being subject to any order, judgment or decree not
subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or
foreign, permanently or temporarily enjeining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his
involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking activities.

No director or executive officer of the Fund is being found by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Commission or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading market or self-reguiatory organization, to
have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation and the judgment has not been
reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Item 10. Executive Compensation
1. Compensation of Executive Officers.

The executive officers of the Fund do not receive any form of compensation from their
appointment up to the present.

2. Compensation of Directors.

The directors do not receive any form of compensation from inception up to the present other than
a PHP20,000.00 per diem for meelings. attended. Only the members of the Board who are
“external directors”, ie., those who are not officers and/or employees of SLOCPI, receive
remuneration for their attendance in regular or special meetings of the Board at the rate of
PHP20,000.00 to each director for every meeting attended. Their contributed efforts to the Fund
are on a voluntary basis only. Also, there is no bonus, profit sharing or other compensation pian,
pension or retirement plan, contract or arrangement in which any director or nominee for efection
as a director or executive officer of the Fund will participate.

However, starting on January 01, 2010, each external director, as defined above, shall also
receive a retainer's fee not to exceed PHF15,000.00 per quarter. Payment of such retainer's fee
shall be shared by the Fund with the other Sun Life Prosperity Funds which the external director
also serves, provided that each external director shall receive only a maximum of PHP15,000.00
per quarter from all the Sun Life Prosperity Funds which he serves as director.

Total per diem received by the Fund's directors for the year 2015 and 2014 are PHP189,053 and
PHP225,000, respectively.

The Board has four (4) regular quarterly meetings for 2016, including the crganizational board
meeting after the annual shareholders’ meeting. For the four (4) meetings and with two (2)
members of the Board who are external directors entitled to receive per diem, the Fund forecasts
a total directors’ per diem of PHP160,000.00 for the year 2016. The external directors are also
forecasted to receive a total of PHP25,000.00 as retainer's fees for 2016,

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

1. Security ownership of more than 5% of the Fund’s outstanding capital stock as of
December 31, 2015:

As agreed with the Corporate Finance Department and the Office of the General Accountant of
the SEC, the list of Top 20 shareholders of the Fund, marked “Private and Confidential®, is
submitted to the SEC separately in order to protect the investors' privacy, which is a privilege they
enjoy when they invest in other shared investment vehicles, such as unit investment trust funds,
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and when they invest in bank deposits. This list includes shareholders owning more than 5% of
the Fund's outstanding capital stock as of December 31, 2015, if any.

On 7 March 2013, SEC approved the confidential treatment of the list of Top 20 shareholders of
the Fund, including its 5% and 10% beneficial owners. This is to protect the investors' privacy,
which is a privilege they enjoy when they invest in other shared investment vehicles, such as unit
investment trust funds, and when they invest in bank deposits.

2. Security Ownarship of Management as follows:

. Number Parcent
Title of Name of . ias .
. of Nature of Ownership | Citizenship of
Class Beneficial Owner Shares’ Class
Rizalina G. Beneficial {B} and
Common Mantaring 1 Record ('R} Filipino 0.00%
Common Valerie N. Pama 1 B&R Filipino 0.00%
Filipino and
Common Benedicto C. Sison 1. B&R Amaerican 0.00%
Aleli Angela G.
Common Quirino 1 B&R Filipino 0.00%
Common Oscar S. Reyes 1 B&R Filipino 0.00%

The above individual owners can be reached at c/o SLAMCI, 8F Sun Life Centre, 5" Avenue cor
Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.

3. Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

No holder of 5% or more of the Fund's common shares has any voting trust or similar agreement
that vest voting rights or other powers to a voting trustee.

4, Change in Control

The Fund has no knowledge of any arrangement that may result in a change of control of the
Fund,

Item12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The Fund is not involved in any related transactions.

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Item 13. Compliance with Leading Practice on Corporate Governance

The Fund is committed to performing its obligations following sound standards of business and
financial practices and assesses the tevel of compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level
management with its Manual on Corporate Governance through the Corporate Governance Self-
Rating Form.

Likewise, the Fund requires the directqrs to answer a Board Effectiveness Questionnaire to
determine their outlook on current practices and further enhance their performance. Internal audit
and compliance units of the Fund also actively ensure that the Fund meets its regulatory and
moral obligations to the government agencies and the general public, respectively.

There has been no reported incident of any deviation from the Fund’s Manual on Corporate
Governance. A strang ethical business culture in the performance of duties is continuously

! Number of shares held in their capacity as Director or Chairperson
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upheld and promoted. Nonetheless, the Fund makes an effort to improve corporate governance of
the company by holding training sessions for its Board and officers whenever possible.

PART V — EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Audited Financial Statements

Statements of Financial Position, 2015, 2014

Statements of Comprehensive Income, 2015, 2014, 2013
Statements of Changes in Equity, 2015, 2014, 2013
Statements of Cash Flows, 2015, 2014, 2013

Notes to Financial Statements

AW

- NOTHING FOLLOWS -
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 11 of the RSA and Section 141 of the Corporation

Code, the registrant has duly caused this report to_be sign _its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of @Ef‘iﬁ ﬁi‘fi onAPR 2 9 207516,

SUN LIFF PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.
Issuer "

Pursuant to the requirements of the Revised Securities Act, this annual report has been
signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By:
’ ST € o
Benedicto C. Sisdn . Ma efina A. Castillo
Principal Executive Officer Prinkipal Accounting Officer
Kaloni %) Pama, -
. Valerie N. Pama Rogelle L. Lustre
Principal Operating Officer / SLAMC! President , Controller
Cand Esteban Maria CeqglliZ ¥ Soria
Principal Fingpcid) Officer/Treasurer Assistant Corporate Secretary
APR 2 9 2016
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 2018,
affiants exhibiting their government issued identification cards, as follows:;

Name Government ID No, Date of issue Place of Issue
Benedicto Sison Passport No, 488432394 05/09/2013 United States
Valerie N. Pama Passport No, EB6184455 08/23/2012 Manila
Candy S. Esteban Driver's License N02-95-

277891 05-08-2015 Quezon City
Ma. Josefina Castillo Passport No. EB5574529 06/05/2012 Manila
Roselle L. Lustre Passport No. EB8020503 05/02/2013 Manila
Maria Cecilia V. Soria Passport No. i=C2765788 177972074 Manila /
Doc. No. 225; _ ' :
Page No. _US - JOEL GfGOR
Book No. 52, - Notfry ._;'um[:) OtA
Series of 2016, Commission expirzf uyfu December 31, 2017

Adm. No. 069, fol ol 25103; iBP No. 1013094
PTR No. 18 JMa2: 10am6. q 6.
) TIN 126.763-80 | MACLE Mo V0001534
Untit 1 # 876 Quinno Hway, Guiog, Novaliches, Q.€
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc. is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentaton of the financial statements
including the additional components attached therein, as at December 31, 2015 and
2014 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, in -
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
additional components attached therein and submits the same to the stockholders.

Navarro Amper & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has
examined the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its
opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

taring, Chairman of the Board

=
enedicto C. Sison, President

Candy S. Bstebafl Treasurer

Signed this 15% day of March
APR 11
a8 . 2016 at

- ~r -~ -Subscribed and sword to “béfore me thisT___ day of
W. T m? , affiants exhibiting to me competent evidence of identity, as follows:
Name Government ID Date/Place of Issuc
Rizalina G. Mantaring Passport No. EC5964028 11-13-15 / Manila
Benedicto C. Sison Passport No. 488432394 05-09-13/USA
Candy S. Esteban Driver’s License N02-93-277891 05-0&}-2015/Que20n City
Doc. No. JOEYE. GORDOLA | iy
Page No. taffy Public

Book No, ; 2
Series of 2016 ) Adm. N, 0BY: Ry 0. 25103; IBP No.

PTR No. \i76282; 1/04/16; Q.C.
_ » MCLE No. V-0001531
Until 1 # 878 Quinno Hway, Gulod, Novaliches, 0.0




Deloitte.

NavarroAmper&Co. et

5% Avenue corner 26 Street
Benifacio Global City, Taguig 1634
Philippines

Tel: +63 2,581 9000
Fax: +63 2 869 3676
www.deloitte.com/ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0004
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4

SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.

(An Open-end Investment Company)
2 Floot, Sun Life Centre, 5 Avenue corner Rizal Drive

Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City
Gentlemen:

We have examined the financial statements of Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc. as at and
for the year ended December 31, 2015, on which we have rendered the attached report dated

March 15, 2016.

In compliance with SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the said Company is a secondary licensce of the
Securities and Exchange Commission being an open-end investment company.

Navarro Amper & Co.
BOA Registration No. 0004, valid from December 4, 2015 to December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4, issued on January 7, 2016; effective untl January 6, 2019, Group A

TIN 005299331

By:

Ffancis B. Albalate
artner
CPA License No. 0088499
SEC A.N. 0104-AR-4, issued on June 30, 2015; effective untl June 29, 2018, Group A

TIN 120319015
BIR A.N. 08-002552-32-2014, issued on October 3, 2014; effective untl October 3, 2017

PTR No. A-2798353, issued on January 6; 2016, Taguig City
I

Taguig City, Philippines
March 15, 2016

AR AT mER DAL

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



NavarroAm pei’& Co. o s i o

5t Avenue corner 26™ Street
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig 1634
Philippines

Tel: +63 2 581 9000
Fax: +63 2 869 3676
www.delaitte.com/ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No, 0004
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.
(An Open-end Investment Company)

2nd Floor, Sun Life Centre, 5 Avenue corner Rizal Drive
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

Repott on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund,
Inc., which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory informaton.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility \

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provlde a basis for
our audit opinion. e

. AR
De I OItte L] Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc. as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the petiod ended December 31, 2015 in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Requited by the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information for the year ended December 31, 2015 on taxes, duties and
licenses in Note 23 to the financial statements are presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of
Internal Revenue and are not required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary
information are the responsibility of Management and have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.”

Navarro Amper & Co.
BOA Registration No. 0004, valid from December 4, 2015 to December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4, issued on January 7, 2016; effective until January 6, 2019, Group A
TIN 005299331

By:

Frhncis B. Albalate

Partner

CPA License No. 0088499 :

SEC A.N. 0104-AR-4, issued on June 30, 2015; effective untl June 29, 2018, Group A
TIN 120319015

BIR A.N., 08-002552-32-2014, issued on October 3, 2014; effective until Qctober 3, 2017
PTR No. A-2798353, issued on January 6, 2016, Taguig City

Taguig City, Philippines
March 15, 2016
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SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, I

(An Open-end Investment Company)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
‘ Notes 2015 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash in banks G P 44,037,682 P 13,522,080
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 4,975,291,958 143,900,000
Held-ro-marurity investments 9 1,517,679,970 83,786,523
Accrued interest receivable 7 27,906,835 740,073
Other current assets 22,227 11,105
P6,564,938,672 P241,959 781
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other payables 10 P 2,996,616 P 8,687,565
Income tax payable - 1,850
Payable to fund manager 11 2,091,286 689,584
Total Current Liabilities 5,087,902 9,379,039
Equity .
Share capital . 12 4,000,000 3,999,844
Deposits for furure stock subscriptions 12 6,131,908,722 -
Additional paid-in capital 13 438,976,392 439,488,441
Retained carnings 27,743,713 6,775,240
6,602,628,827 450,263,525
Treasury shares ] 12 (42,778,057) (217,682,783)
Total Equity 6,559,850,770 / 232,580,742 /
P6,564,938,672 P241,959,781
Net Asset Value Per Share 14 P1.1395 P 11252
See Notes to Financial Statements.
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SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC,

[An Open-end Investment Company)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

Notes 2013 2014 2013
Investment [ncome - net
Interest income ‘ 15 P 24414915 P4390,635  P2,964,327
Net realized gains on investments 8 5,693,646 - -
Other income - 94,493 559,303
30,108,561 4,485,124 3,523,630
Operating Expenses '
Management fees 1 6,023,446 1,641,458 3,442,688
Custodianship fees : 1,436,125 14,195 600
Directors’ fees 1" 199,053 224,999 185,000
Professional fees 91,107 87,360 83,866
Printing and supplies 89,916 731,198 151,138
Taxes and licenses 66,025 49,952 69,215
Miscellaneous 43,167 121,452 83,986
) 7,948,839 2870,614 4,016,553
Profit (Loss) Before Net Unrealized Gains 22,159,722 1,614,514 (492,923}
Net Unrealized Gains on Investments § 1,650,999 - -
Profit (Loss) Before Tax 23,850,721 1,614,514 (492,923)
Income Tax Expense 18 2,882,248 1,567,580 591,331
Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive
___Income for the Year P 20,968,473 P46,934 (P1,084,254)
Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share - 16 P0.0580 POO00O2 (P 0.011}
Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share 16 P0.0198 P0.GO01 (P 0.011)

See Notes co Financis! Statements,
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SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MA.RKEI‘ FUND, INC.

(Ao Cpen-<nd lovestment Company) :

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Deposits for Additional
Share Future Stock Paid-in Retained Treasury
Notcs Capital Subscriptions Capiral - Eamings Shares Tatat
Balance, january 1, 2013 P 1,000,000 P 180,650,930 P 103,930,143 P 7812560 (P215,028) P 293,178,605
Loss and other comprehensive income for the year - R - (1,084,254} _ {1,084,254)
Transactions with owners: 12
Acquisition of treasury shares during the year - - - - {1,797,454,855) {1,797,454,855)
Reissuance of weeasury shares during the year - - (156,450,240) - 1,796,9t4,143 1,640,463,903
Receipt of deposit for funre seock subscriptions - 1,762,613,685 - - - 1,762,613,685
Redemption of deposit for future stock subserption - (1.659,167,820) 9,506,273 - - (1.649,661,547)
._Transfer from DFFS 1o subscribed capital 1,209,459 (284,096,795) 282887336 - - -
Total transactions with owners ) B 1,209,459 {180,650 930) 135,943,369 - {540,712 {44,038,814)
Balance, December 31, 2013 13 2,209,459 - 239,873,512 6,728 306 (755,740) 248,055 537
Profit and other comprchensive income for the year - - - 46,934 - 46,934
Transactions with owners: 12
Acquisition of treasury shares during the year - - - - (742,872,868) (742.872,868)
Reissuance of teasury shares during the year - - (63,692,931) N 525,945,825 462,752 894
Receipt of deposits for furure stock subscriptions - 727,509,972 - - T 727,509,972
Redemption of depasits for Future stock subscriptions - (75.275,725) (387,136,002) . - {462,411,727)
Issuance of shares dusing the year 1,790,385 (652.,234,247) 650,443,862 . - -
"Total tmasactions with owners 1,790,385 - 199,614,929 - (216,927,043 (15.521,729)
Balance, December 3 1, 2014 i3 3,999,844 - 439,488,441 6,775,240 (217.682,783) 232,580,742
Profit and other comprebensive income for the year - - - 20,968,473 - 20,968,473
Transactions with owners: 12
Acquisition of treasury shares dusing the year - - - {660,108,396) (660,108,896)
Reissuance of treasusy shares during the year - - 189,576,459 - 835,013,622 1,024,590.081
Receipt of deposits for future stock subscoptions - 6,172,086,144 - . - 6,172,086,144
Redemption of deposits for Future stock subscriptions . (40,177,422) (190,105,538) - - (230,282,960
Issuance of shares during the year 156 - 17,030 - - 17,186
Total transactons with owners 156 6,131,908,722 (512,049 - 174,904,726 6,306,301,555
Balance, December 31, 2015 13 P 4,000,000 P6,131,908,722 P 438976392 P 7774378 {P42,778,057)  P6,559,850,770

See Noves to Financial Seatements.



SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.

{An Open-end Investment Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Cash Flows from Operating Activitics
Profit (Loss) before 1ax P 23,850,721 P 1,614,514 (P492,923)
Net unrealized gains on investments B (1,690,999) - .
Net realized gains on investments {5,693,646) - -
Interest income 15 (24,414 915) {4,390,635) {2,964,327)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (7,948,839) (2,776,121) (3,457,250)
Decrease (Increase) in:
Other current assets (11,122) - .
Due from a related party . 45,000 (45,000)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accrued expenses and other payables (5,650,949) 8,603,352 (570,142)
Paynble to fund manager 1,401,702 473798 {82,047)
Cash genenated from {used in) operations (12,249,208) 6,346,029 (4,154,43%)
Acquisitions of financial nssets at fair value ’
through profit or loss (30,879,502,178) (36,105,710,000)  (44,245,430,400)
Proceeds from marurities and disposals of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 26,055,494 865 36,189,617,651 44,306,750,400
interest cecoived 1,9,15 1,140,151 207,687 3,002,540
Income taxes paid {2,884,138) (1,565,690) (591,607)
Net cash from (used in) openating acovities (4,838 000,498) 88 8095677 59,576 504
Cash Flows from Investing Activity
Net acquisitions of held-to-maturity investments {1,437,785.455) (B6,451,267) -
Cash Flows from Financing Activitics
Proceeds from reissuance of treasury shares 12 1,024,590,081 462,252,894 1,640,463,903
Payments on acquisition of treasury shares 12 (660,108,896) (742,872,868)  (1,797.454,855)
Receipts of deposits for future stock subscrptions - 12 6,172,086,144 721,509,972 1,762,613,685
Payments on redemption of deposis .
for future stock subscriptions 12 (230,282,960) (62,411,727)  (1,649,661,547)
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 17,186 . -
Net cash from {used in) financing activities 6,306,301,555 (15,521,72%) {44,038,814)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash in Banks 30,515,602 (13,077,319} 15,537,780
Cash in Banks, Beginning 13,522 08O 26,549,399 11,061,619
Cash in Banks, End P 44,037,682 P 13522080 P 26,599,399

Sce Notes w0 Financial Staremencs.

€ 1 1 Iaf; inn on N h Fi ing Activity

The Company issued share capml amounting 1o P 1,790,385 and P 1,209,459 in 2014 and 2013, respectively,

P652,234,247 and P2B4,096,795, in 2014 and 2013, respectively,
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SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC,
(An Open-end Investment Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 AND FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN

THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

L CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sun Life Prosperity Money Marker Fund, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 5, 2004
and started commercial operations on July 1, 2004. The Company is a registered open-end
investment company under the Investrment Company Act (Republic Act “R.A.” No. 2629)
and the Securities Regulation Code (R.A. No. 8799), formerly known as the Revised
Securities Act (B.P. No. 178). It is engaged in the sale of redeemable shares and is designed
to maximize income as is considered consistent with capital protection through investments
in fixed-income securities and other related investments issued by the Philippine
government, commercial papers issued by corporations within the Philippines, certificates of
deposit and other short-term peso-denominated instruments. As an open-end investnent
company, its shares are redeemable anytime based on the net asset value per share (NAVPS)
at the time of redemption.

The Company appointed Sun Life Asset Management Company, Inc. (SLAMCI), an
investment management company incorporated in the Philippines and a wholly owned
subsidiary of Sun Life of Canada (Philippines), Inc. (SLOCPI), as its fund manager, adviser,
administrator, distributor and transfer agent that provides management, distribution and all
required operational services, as ‘disclosed in Note 11.

The Company's registered office address and principal place of business is at the
2M Floot, Sun Life Centre, 5% Avenue corner Rizal Diive, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig

City.

2. FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

AND PRESENTATION

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the {Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), which include all applicable PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC)
and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) as approved by the Financial Reporting
_Standards Council (FRSC) and the Board of Accountancy (BOA), and adopted by the SEC.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

‘The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial assets measured at fair value and certain financial instruments
carried at amortized cost.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services. !

Functional Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. All amounts are recorded to the
nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated. o e
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ADOFPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards Effective in 2015

The following new and revised accounting standards and interpretations that have been
published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and issued by the FRSC
in the Philippines wete adopted by the Company effective on January 1, 2015:

Annsual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cyele
The annual improvements address the following:

Amendment to PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (amendment to the basis of conclusions ondy,
with consequential amendments to the bases of conclusions of other standards)

The amendment clarified that the issuance of PFRS 13 and consequential amendments

-to PAS 39 and PFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and
payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting, if the
effect of not discounting is immaterial.

The amendment did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements. :

Amendment to PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures

The amendment clarified that a management entity providing key management
petsonnel services to a reporting entity is a related party of that reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity must disclose as related party transactions the
amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity for the
provision of key management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The amendment did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cyole
These annual improvements address the following:

Amendment to PFRS 13, Farr Value Measurement

The scope of the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial
assets and financial liabilities on 2 net basis was amended to clarify that it includes all
contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, PAS 39 or
PFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial Liabilities within PAS 32.

The amendment did not have a significant tmpact on the Company’s financial
statements.

New Accounting Standards Effective after the Reporting Period Ended
December 31, 2015

The Company will adopt the following PFRS once these become effective:

Amendments to PFRS 11, Awpunting for Acquisttions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments clarify the accounting for acquisitions of an interest in 2 joint operation
when the operation constitutes a business such that the acquirer is required to apply all of the
principles on business combinations in PFRS 3 and other PFRSs with the exception of those
principles that conflict with the guidance in PFRS 11, Accordingly, a joint operator that is an
acquirer of such an interest has.to:
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’ measure most identifiable assets and liabilities at fair value;

*  expense acquisition-related costs (other than debt or equity issuance costs);

. recognize deferred taxes;

*  recognize any goodwill or bargain purchase gain;

*  perform impairment tests for the cash generatng units to which goodwill has been
allocated; and

*  disclose information required relevant for business combinations.

The amendments apply to the acquisition of an interest in an existing joint operation and also
to the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation on its formation, unless the formation of
the joint operation coincides with the formation of the business.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
Earlier application is permitted but cotresponding disclosures are required. The amendments
apply prospectively.

The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

PERS 14, Regulatory Deferral Avgunts

The standard permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International Financial
Reporting Standards to continue to account, with some limited changes, for. ‘regulatory
deferral account balances’ in accordance with its previous GAAP, both on initial adoption of
PFRS and in subsequent financial statements. Regulatory deferral account balances, and
movements in them, are presented separately in the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and specific disclosures are

required.

The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
Earlier application is permitted. '

The future adoption of the standard will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

These amendments clarify that a depreciation method that is based on revenue generated by
an activity that includes the use of an asset is not appropriate. This is because such method
reflects a pattern of generation of economic benefits that arise from the operation of the
business of which an asset is part, rather than the pattern of consumption of an asset’s

expected future economic beneéfits.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
~Earlier application is permitted.

The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
staternents. '

Amendments to PAS 16, Prperty, Plant and Egquipment and Amendments to
PAS 41, Agrioulture

The amendments require biological assets that meet the definition of a bearer plant to be
accounted for as property, ‘plant and equipment in accordance with PAS 16. The
amendments define bearer plants as living plants that are used in the production or supply of
agricultural produce and for which there is only a remote likelihood that the plant will also be

sold as agricultural produce.

The amendments are effccr:ive‘I for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with
earlier application being permitted.




The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to PAS 27, Separare Financial Statements

The amendments reinstate the equity method as an accounting option for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in an entity's separate financial staternents.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with
carlier application being permitted.

The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to PAS 38, Intangible Assets

These amendments introduce reburtable presumption that a revenue-based amortization

method for intangible assets is inappropriate for the same reasons as in PAS 16, Property,

Plant and Equipment. However, the IASB states that there are limited circumstances when the

presumption can be overcome:

*  the intangible asset is expressed as 2 measure of revenue (the predominant limiting factor
inherent in an intangible asset is the achievement of a revenue threshold); and

* it can be demonstrated that revenue and the consumption of economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated (the consumption of the intangible asset is directly
linked to the revenue penerated from using the asset).

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
Earlier application is permitted.

The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to PFRS 10: Conroddated Financal Statements and PAS 28: Investments in Astociates
and Joint Ventures (2011) ‘

The amendments include the following:

*  Amendment to PAS 28 (2011) so that the current requirements regarding the partial gain
or loss recognition for transactions between an investor and its associate or joint venture
only apply to the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations and the gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution to an associate or a joint venture of assets that
constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations is recognized in full.

* Amendment to PFRS 10 5o that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution
of a subsidiary that does. not constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3, Butiners
Combinations to an associate ot joint venture is recognized only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the assoctate or joint venture.

The amendments are to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016.

The future adoption of the arnendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements. ' '
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The annual improvements address the folowing:

Amendment to PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held Jfor Sale and Discontinued Operations

The amendment introduces specific guidance in PFRS 5 when an entity reclassifies an
asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued. The
amendment states that:

* such reclassifications should not be considered changes to a plan of sale or a plan of
distribution to owners and that the classification, presentation and measurement
requirements applicable to the new method of disposal should be applied; and

® assets that no longer meet the criteria for held for distribution to owners (and do not
meet the critetia for held for sale) should be treated in the same way as assets that
cease to be classified as held for sale.

"The future adoption of the amendment will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statemnents.

Amendments to PFRS 7, Finandal Instraments: Disclosures

The amendments provide additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is
continuing involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets. PFRS 7 states that a pass through arrangement
under a servicing contract does not, in itself, constitute a continuing involvement in
asset, for instance, when the amount and/or timing of the servicing fee depend on the
amount and/or the timing of the cash flows collected. The amendments add guidance
to this effect.

The amendments also clarified the applicability of the disclosure requirements on
offsetting financial assets and financial kabilities to be included in condensed interim
financial statements. The amendments clarify that the offsetting disclosures are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to be
included in condensed interim financial statements to comply with PAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting, )

The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to PAS 19, Empigyee Benefits

The amendments clarified that the high quality corporate bonds used to estimate the
discount rate for post-employment benefits should be issued in the same currency as
the benefits to be paid. These amendments would result in the depth of the market for
high quality corporate bonds being assessed at currency level.

The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.
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Amendment to PAS 34, Interim Financal Reporting

The amendment clarified the requirements relating to information required by PAS 34
that is presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but outside the interim
financial statements. The amendmeat requires that such information be incorporated by
way of a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the other part of the
interim financial report that is available to users on the same terms and at the same time
as the interim financial statements.

The future adoption of the amendment will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

The above improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. However, early application of these improvements is permitted.

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28, Investment Entitier Apphying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments address the issues that have arisen in the context of applying the
consolidation exception for investment entities. The amendments clarify the following
aspects:

*  Whether an investment entity parent should account for an investment entity subsidiary
at fair value, when the subsidiary provides investment-related services to third parties;

*  The interaction between the investment entity amendments and the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements requirements in PERS 10; and

*  Whether 2 non-investment entity must ‘unwind’ the fair value accounting of its joint
ventures or assoctates that are investment entities.

An investment entity measuring all of its subsidiaries at fair value provides the disclosures
relating to investment entities required by PFRS 12.

These amendments will have no matetial impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to PAS 1, Preseniation of Finangal Statements

The amendments include the fo]lowing.

*  Materiality: The amendments clarify that (1) information should not be obscured by
aggregating or by providing immaterial information, (2) materiality considerations apply
to all parts of the financial statements, and (3) even when 2 standard requires a specific
disclosure, materiality considerations do apply.

*  Statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income: The amendments (1) introduce a clarification that the list of line jtems to be
presented in these statements can be disagpregated and aggregated as relevant and
additional guidance on subtotals in these statements and (2) clarify that an entity’s share
of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should be presented in
aggtegate as single line items based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified
to profit or loss.

* Notes: The amendments add additional examples of possible ways of ordering the
notes to clarify that understandability and comparability should be considered when
determining the order of the notes. The standard also removed guidance and examples
with regard to the identification of significant accounting policies that were perceived as
being potentially unhelpful.

The amendments are effective’ for annual petiods beginning on or after January 1, 2016,
Earlier application is permitted. Application of the amendments need not be disclosed.
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The future adoption of the amendments will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

PFRS 9, Finanaal Instruments {2014}

This standard consists of the following three phases:

With respect to the classification and measurement under this standard, all recognized
financial assets that are currently within the scope of PAS 39 will be-subsequently measured
at either amortized cost or fair value. Specifically:

* A debt instrument that (i) is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows.and (ii) has contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the outstanding balance must be measured at amortized cost
(net of any write down for impairment), unless the asset is designated at fair value

through profit or loss (FVTPL) under the fair value option.

* A debt instrument that (i) is held within 2 business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and (i) has
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, must be measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVT OCI), unless the asset is designated at
FVTPL under the fair value option. :

. All other debt instruments must be measured at FVTPL,

* Al equity investments are to be measured in the statement of financial position at fair
value, with gains and losses recognized in profit or loss except that if an equity
investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition to measure the investment at FVT: OCI, with dividend income recognized in

profit or loss.

This standard also contains requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and detecognition requirements. Under this standard, changes in the fair value of a
financial liability designated as'at FVTPL attributable to changes in the credit risk of the
liability shall be presented in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation in other
comprehensive income would create or increase an accounting mismatch, Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial 'liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit

or loss.

Based on Management’s assessment, the recognition and measurement of the Company’s
financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at FVTPL, and financial liabilities would be
the same under both PAS 39 and PFRS 9.

The impairment model under this standard reflects expected credit losses. Under this
impairment approach, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses ‘are recognized. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and

changes in those expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses should be
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The adoption of the standard shall result in initial measurement of financial assets at
amortized cost at fair value net of transaction costs and expected credit losses.
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Financeal assetr at FVVTPL

The general hedge accounting requirements for this standard retain the three types of hedge
accounting mechanism in PAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify as hedging instruments and the types of tsk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and teplaced with the principle of economic relationships. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is no longer requited. Far more disclosure requirements

about an entity’s risk management activities have been introduced.

The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
Eatlier application is permitted.

The future adoption of the standard will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements since the Company does not apply hedge accounting,

The future adoption of the standard will have no effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Financial Assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of
all financial assets, except for investments classified as at FVTPL, All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at
FVIPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition,

The Company’s financial assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of financial assets
at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables.

The Company classifies financial assets as at FVIPL when the financial asset is either held
for trading or designated as such upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

® it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

* on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or .
* itisadenvative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:
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* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

* the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or mote embedded derivatives, and it is
permitted that the eatire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Finaneial assets at FVTPL arc stated at fair value, with any resulting gain or loss recognized
in profit ot loss.

The Company’s financial assets classified under this category include investments in special
savings deposits and Investments in Unit Investment Trust Fund (UITF). Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 17.

Loans and recesvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment and are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt
tnstrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the debt instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
inidal recognition.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the effect of not discounting is immaterial.

The Company’s financial assets classified under this category include cash in banks and
accrued interest receivable.

HTM investments

HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, HTM investments are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with revenue tecognized on an

effective yield basis.

" Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have

been affected.

Odbjective evidence of impairment
For all financial assets carried at amortized cost, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter party; or
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* * breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
ot

* the lender, for economic or legal reasons reladng to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise

consider; or

* it has become probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
re-organization; or

*  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

*  observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated furure
cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initia) recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financia]

assets in the group.

Finandal assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables and HTM
investments catried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred, discouated at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate, i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. '

The carrying amount of financial assets carried at amortized cost is reduced directly by the
impairment loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be rclared objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss shall be reversed. The reversal shall not result in a
cartying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contto! the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
--rewards of ownership ofa transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize
the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and any cumulative gain or
loss that had been tecognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognized in profit or loss.
Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabiliies or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and equity instrument. e
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Financal babilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are
initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of
the Company’s financial liabilities, except for debt instruments classified as at FVTPL.

Financial kiabilities are classified as either financial liabilities as at FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement ,
Since the Company does not have financial liabilities classified s at FVTPL, all financial
lisbilines are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The Company’s financial liabilities classified under this category include accrued expenses
and other payables and payable to fund manager.

Derecopnition

Financial liabilities are derecognized by the Company when the obligation under the liabiliry .
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit
or loss. '

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Ordinary shares

Share capital consisting of ordinary shares is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds, net of tax. Any excess of proceeds from issuance of shares over its pat value is

recognized as additional paid-in capital.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent accumulated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company after deducting dividends declared. Retained earnings may also include effect of
““¢hanges il accounting policy as may be required by the standard’s transitional provisions.

Repurchase, disposal and reissuance of share capital (treasury share;)

When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, which include directly attributable cost, net of any tax effects, is recognized as a
reduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented
in the reserve for own share account. When treasury shares are sold or reissued
subsequently, the amount received is recognized as increase in equity, and the resulting
surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented as additional paid-in capital.

Deposits for future stock subseriptions

Deposits for future stock subscriptions are recorded at historical cost. These ar

equity when all of the following criteria are met: s
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" Realiged gains or losses

*  the unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of
shares indicated in the contract;

* there is Board of Directors’ approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock
(for which a deposit was received by the Company);

* there is stockholders’ approval of said proposed increase; and
* the api:]ication for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC.

Deposits for future stock subscriptions are classified as Liability, when any of the above
criteria are not met.

Revenue Recognition

Income is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Income is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for services
provided in the normal course of business.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of investments are determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the investments and are recognized in
profit or loss.

Fair value gains

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of investments are disclosed under the
. - g ge

policy on financial assets.

Other income

Other income is income generated outside the normal course of business and is recognized
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can be
measured reliably.

“"Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit related
to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured teliably.
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss on the basis of: (i) a dircct association between the
costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; (if) systematic and rational
allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting
periods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or,
(1ii) immediately when an expenditure produces no furure economic benefits ot when, and to
the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition
in the statements of financial position as an asset.

Expenses in the statements of comprehensive income are presented using the nature of

expense method. ' ,
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Fair Value :

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or 2 liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participanits would take those characteristics

. into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for

measuremnent and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such
basis. \

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measutements are categorized into
Levels 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance 'of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Leve] 1, that are
observable for the asset ot liability, either directly or indirectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Related Party Transactions

A related party transaction is a ‘transfer of resoutces, services or obligations between the
Company and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered related if one party has control, jotnt control, or significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. An entity that is a
post-employment benefit plan for the employees of the Company and the key management
personnel of the Company are also considered to be related parties. '

Taxation '

Income tax expense represents the sum of the cutrent tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax |

The corporate income tax current:ly expensed is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from net profit as reported in the statements of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that ate never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax
expense is calculated using 30% zlegular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate or 2% minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) rate, whichever is higher.

Final tax i

Final tax expense represents taxes withheld on interest income from cash in banks, special

. . . oL, I
savings deposits, fixed-income securities and held-to-maturity investments.
I .
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductble temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabiliies are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and lkiabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the Lability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates {and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the teporting petiod.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilidies and these relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authotity and the Company intends to settle its curtent tax assets and lizbilities
on a net basis. :

Caurrent and deferved tax for the year

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Earnings (Loss) per Share

The Company computes its basic earnings per share by dividing profit or loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holdets of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings (loss) pet share, profit or loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of deposits for furure stock subscriptions
which are dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Net Asset Value per Share (NAVPS)

The Company computes its NAVPS by dividing the total net asset value as at the end of the
reporting period by the number of issued and outstanding shares and shates to be issued on

deposits for future stock subscriptions.

Events After the Reporting Period

The Company identifies events after the end of the reporting period as those events, both
favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the financial statements are authorized for issue. The financial statements of the
Company are adjusted to reflect those events that provide evidence of conditions that existed
at the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting petiod
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when materal.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES, OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, Management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on the historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

" The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimates, that

Management has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Loans and receivables designated as at FI"TPL

The Company designated its special savings deposits as at FVIPL since it forms part of 2
group of managed financial assets whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy. The
information about the group of managed financial assets is provided internally on that basis

to the Company’s management.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of special savings deposits
designated as financial assets at FVTPL zmounted to P4,266,040,000 and P143,900,000,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 8.

HTM fnvestments

Management reviewed the Company’s held-to-maturity investments in the light of its capital
maintenance and liquidity. requirements and confirmed its positive intention and ability to
hold those assets to maturity. The cacrying amount of held-to-maturity investments as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 is P1,517,679,790 and P83,786,523, respectively, as disclosed in

Note 9.

Puttable shares designated as equity instruments

The Company designated its 'redeemable share capital as equity instruments since the
Company’s share capital met the specified criteria as ptescribed by PAS 32, Finangal
Instruments: Presentation to be presented as equity.

A puttable financial instrument includes a contractual obligation for the issuer to repurchase
or redeem that instrument for cash or another financial asset on exercise of the put. As an

exception to the definition of a financial lability, an instrument that includes such an
obligation is classified as an equity instrument if it has met all the following features:

a. it entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the entity’s net assets in the event of the
entity’s liquidation. The entity’s net assets are those assets that remain after deducting all
other claims on its assets; ‘

b. itis in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments;

¢.  all financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes

of instruments have identical features; ;"-_:-‘_-i
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d. apart from the contractual obligation for the issuer to tepurchase or redeem the
instrument for cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any
contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
ate potentially unfavorable to the entity, and it is not a contract that will or may be
settled in the entity’s own equity instruments; and

¢. the total expected cash flows attriburable to the instrument over the life of the
instrument are based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognized net
assets or the change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognized net assets of
the entity over the life of the instrument (excluding any effects of the instrument).

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the recognized amount of share capital representing
puttable shares in the statements of financial position amounted to P4,000,000 and

P3,999,844, respectively, as disclosed in Note 12.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the Company’s key assumptions concerning the furure and other key
soutces of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period that have a significant
tisk of causing a material adjustment to the catrying amounts of assets and liabilites within

the next financial year.

Deferred tax arsets

The Company reviews the carrying amount at the end of each reporting petiod and reduces
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. There is no assurance
that the Company will generate sufficient taxable profit that will allow all or part of its
deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Based on Management's expectation of the Company’s future taxable income, the Company
did not recognize the deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 as disclosed in

Note 18.

Determining fair value of investments in debt securities classified as finandial assets as at FUTPL

The Company carries its investments in debt securities and special savings deposits at fair
value, which requires use of accounting estimates and judgment. Since market interest rate is
a significant component of fair value measurement, fair value would differ if the Company
applied a different set of teference rates in the valuation methodology. Any change in the fair
value of these financial assets would affect profit or loss and equity.

- As at-December 31,2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of investments in debt securities

classified as financial assets at FVTPL amounted to P4,266,040,000 and P143,900,000,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 8.

CASH IN BANKS

Cash in banks earned interest 'amounting to P70,213, P165,432, and P130,125 at average
interest rates of 0.20% in 2015 and 2014 and 0.27% in 2013 as disclosed in Note 15,
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7. ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

This account consists of accrued interest on the following:

2015 2014
Held-to-maturity investments P22,822.126 P669,185
Special savings deposits 5,084,709 . 70,888
P27,906,835 P740.073

8.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This account consists of:

2015 2014
Heid for trading:
Investrnents in UITFs . P 709,251,958 P -
Designated:
Special savinps deposits 4,266,040,000 143,900,000

P4,975,291,958  P143,900,000

Investments in UITFs are placed in universal banks and are redeemable anytime, Special
savings deposits have contractual maturity of three months or less.

Interest income earned on special savings deposits amounted to P7,246,090, P1,410,187, and
P2,834,202 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as disclosed in Note 15, Average rates
earned on these investments are also disclosed in Note 15. ‘

In 2015, net realized and unrealized gains on investments that are recognized in profit or loss
arising from held for trading financial assets amounted to P5,693,646 and P1,690,999,

respectively. .

9. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

This account consists of :

2015 2014
Corporate bonds i P 492,562,212 P -
Treasury notes 875,176,485 73,949,572
Treasury bills 149,941,273 ?,836,951
o T P1,517,679,970 P83,786,523

The following are the principal amounts and unamortized premiums:

2015 2014
Principal amounts ‘ P1,469,000,000 P82,845,000
Unamortized premium 48,679,970 941,523
P1,517,679,970 P83,786,513

Interest earned on HTM investments amounted to P16,918,612 and P2,815,016 at an average
cffective interest rate of 4.11% and 1.75% in 2015 and 2014, respectively, as disclosed in Note

15.
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1.

Amortization of net premium amounted to 3,802,008 and P3,454,012 in 2015 and 2014,

respectively. :
The following presents the breakdown of the maturity profile of the principal amounts of
HTM investments: -
2015 2014
Due in one year or less P 150,000,000 P82,845,000
Due after one year through five years 476,000,000 -
Due after five years through ten years 843,000,000 -
P1,469,000,000 782,845,000
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES
This account consists of:
: Note 2015 2014
Due to investors P1,516,352 P8,612,774
Withholding taxes 216,653 8,811
Professional fees 91,107 62,160
Custodianship fees 1,157,362 2,434
Ditectors’ fees 11 14,052 -
Documentaty stamp taxes 1,090 387
Others w - 999
P2,996,616 PB8,687,565

Due to investors account pertains to amounts payable to investors for the redemnption of
their investments processed on or before the reporting petiod, which aze usually paid one
day after the transaction date.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In the normal course of business, the Company transacts with companies which are

considered related parties under PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures.

The details of transaction with related parties and the amounts paid ot payable are set out

below:

- Nuture of - < -~Transactions During Outstanding
Transaction the Year Balances Terms Condition  Notes
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014
SLAMCI ~ Fund Manager ,
. 0.95% of average
daily net assets;
settled in cash on
or before the 150 Unsecured;
Management | day of the Non-interest
Fees P6,023,446  P1,641,458 P3442688 P2,091,286  P6BIS84  followingmonth  bearing
Key Management Personnel '
Directors’ : Payable on
Fees P 199,053 P 224999 P 185000 P 14052 P - demand Unsecured
SLOCPI - Parent of Fund Manager
‘ Payable within 30
Advances P - P - P 45000 P - P - days Unsecured
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Details of the Company’s related party transactions are as follows:

a.

Investment Management

The Company appointed SLAMCI as its fund manager, adviser, administrator,

distributor and transfer agent that provides management, distribution and all required

operational services. Under the Management and Distribution Agreement, SLAMCI
receives aggregate fees for these services at an annual rate of 0.8% of the net assets

attributable to shareholders on each valuation day. Mozeover, under the Transfer Agency

Agreement, SLAMCI receives aggregate fees for these services at an annual rate of

0.15% of the net assets atwibutable to shareholders on each valuation day.

In January 2014, the Company amended the Management and Distribution Agreement
with SLAMCI to reduce the annual fee rate of 0.8% to 0.25% of the net assers
attributable to shareholders on each valuation day.

Management fees charged by SLAMCI to the Company in 2015, 2014 and 2013
amounted to P6,023,446, P1,641,458 and 3,442 688, respectively. Accrued management
fees as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounting to P2,091,286 and P689,584,
respectively, are shown as “Payable to Fund Manager” in the statements of financial
position, usually paid to SLAMCI on or before the 15t day of the following month. The
amounts are unsecured, non-interest beating and will be settled in cash.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of directors is presented in the statements of comprehensive income
under “Directors’ fees” amounting to P199,053, P224,999, and P185,000 in 2015, 2014,
and 2013, respectively, which are usually paid to directors based on the meetings held
and attended. As at December 31, 2015, the directors’ fees payable amounted to P14,052
which is recorded as part of the professional fees under accrued expenses and othet
payables. Accrued director’s fees as at December 31, 2015 amounting to P14,052 is
shown under the account “Accrued Expenses and Other Payables” in the statements of
financial position. ‘

Except for the Board of Directors, the Company has no key management personnel and
employees. Pursuant to the Company’s Management and Distribution Agreement with
SLAMCI, the latter provides all the staff of the Company including executive officers
and other trained personnel. .

Due from a Related Party

Due from a related party refers to the amount receivable from SLOCPI for the amounts
paid by investors for subscriptions of the Company's shates but were deposited to
SLOCPY’s bank accounts. In 2013, due from SLOCPI amounted to P45,000 which was

collected within thirty days after the transaction date.

Investment from a related party

As at December 31, 2015, SLOCPI holds 4,402,049,552 shates of the Company,
representing 76% of the net assets attributable to the shareholders. Proceeds received
from this transaction amounted to P5,003,000,000 with 4,354 489 221 share recorded as

DFFS,

As at December 31, 2015, SLAMCI holds 142,973,401 shares amounting to
P161,197,656 which is equivalent to 2.48% ownership interest.
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12, EQUITY

Movements of share capital and deposits for future stock subscriptions ate as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Authorized:
At PO par
value 400,000,000 P 4,000,000 400,000,000 P 4,000,000 400,000,000 P 4,000,000
Issued and fully
paid:
At January 1 399,984,400 P 1,599,844 220,945,867 P 2,209,459 100,000,000 P 1,000,000
[ssuances during
the year 15,600 156 179,038,533 1,790,385 120,945,867 1,209,459
At December 31 400,000,000 P 4,000,000 399,984 400 P 3,990 844 220,945,867 P 2,209,459
Treasury shares:
At January 1 193,289,688 P 217,682,783 671,232 P 755,740 190196 P 215,028
Acquisition 583,739,002 660,108,896 603,224,598 742,872,868 130,893,159 1,797,454,855
Reissuznce (739,427,129) (835,013,622)  (410,606,142) {525,045,825)  {130,412,123)  (1.796.914,143)
At December 31 37,601,561 P 42,778,057 193,289,688 P 217,682,783 671,232 P 755,740
Deposita for
future stoek
.subscriptions:
At January 1 - P - . P . 159,726,729 P 180,650,930
Receipts 5,597,189,853 6,172,086,144 655,515,531 727,509,972 1,429,476.903 1,762,613,685
Redemptions (202,646,092) (40,177,422) (66,870,854) (75,275,725) (1,468,257,765)  {1,659,167,820)
[ssuances of .
shares - - (589,644,677) (652,234,247) _ (120,945867)  (284,096,795)
At Decernber 31 5,394,543,761 P 5,131,908,722 - p - B bid -
Breakdown of the fully paid shares is as follows:
2015 2014 2013
Shares A::.uoum Shares Amount Shares Amount
Issued 400,000,000 P 4,000,000 199,984,400 P 3,999,644 100,000,000 P1,000,000
Subscabed - - - - 120,945,867 1,209,459
At December 31 400,000,000 P 4,000,060 399,934,400 P3,999,844 220,945 857 P2,209,459

Deposits for future stock subscriptions received in 2015 were classified as equity since the
Company has met all of the conditions required for such recogniton. As at
December 31, 2015, DFFS include subscription of SLOCPI for 4,354,489 221 shares as

disclosed in Note 11.

Incorporation

The Company was incorporated on March 05, 2004 with 100,000,000 authorized shares at
par value of PO.01 per shate. .

Approved Changes

On October 27, 2006, the Board of Directors approved the blanker increase of the
Company’s authorized shate capital up to 100,000,000,000 shares.

On Apnl 24, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the first tranche of the increase in the
Company’s authorized share capital of 300,000,000 shares (from 100,000,000 shares to

400,000,000

shares

both wzth par

value

of P0.01),

the

SEC

increase on January 14, 2010 and the registration statements on March 11, 2014,
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On October 6, 2011, the Board of Directors approved the second tranche of the increase in
the Company’s authorized share capital of 600,000,000 shares (from 400,000,000 shares to
100,000,000,000 shares both with pat value of P0.01).

On Apdl 29, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the increase in the Company’s
authorized capital stock of 600,000,000 shares (from 400,000,000 shares to 100,000,000,000
shares both with par value of P0.01). The increase will be implemented by the Chairman of
the Board of Directors and President of SLAMCI acting jointly in tranches.

On November 10, 2015, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the President of
SLAMCI joindy authorized the increase of 5,600,000,000 shares (from 400,000,000 shares to
6,000,000,000 shates both with par value of P0.01 per share).

Pending Application

As at December 31, 2015, the-Company is still in the process of completing the requirements
for the approval of the increase in the SEC and the registration of the 5,600,000,000
additional shares.

Current State

As at December 31, 2015, the Company has 400,000,000 authorized shares with a pat value
of P0.01 pet share.

The annual summary of the transactions of the Company’s outstanding shares is as follows:

Year  NAVPS, end Issuances Redemptions Balances

2009 P1.1141 - - 99,999,729
2010 P1.1228 956,475,903 (956,477,705) 99,997,927
2011 P1.1268 1,569,004,158 (1,569,009,292) 99,992,793
2012 P1.1296 28,483,419 (28,666,408) 99,809,804
2013 P1.1261 251,357,990 {130,893,159) 220,274,635
2014 P1.1252 589,644,675 (603,224,598) 206,694,712
2015 P1.1395 . 739,442,729 (583,739,002) 362,398 439

The total number of shareholders as at Decemnber 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is 2,517, 365 and
385, respectively.

Redeernable Shares

Redeemable shares carry one vote each, and are subject to the following:

a. Distrubution of dividends
Each shareholder has a right to any dividends declared by the Company’s Board of
Directors and approved by 2/3 of its outstanding shareholders. .

b.  Denial of pre-emptive rights

No shareholder shall, because of his ownership of the shares, have a pre-emptive or
other tight to puichase, subscribe for, or take any part of shares or of any other
securities convertible into or carrying options or warrants to purchase shares of the
registrant.

¢ Right of redemption

The holder of any share, upon its presentation to the Company ot to any of its duly
authorized representatives, is entitled to receive, by way of redemption, approximately
his proportionate share of the Company's current net assets or the cash equivalent
thereof. Shares are redeemable at any time at their net assets value less any applicable

sales charges and taxes. e

21




‘14,

15,

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

Additional paid-in capital of P438,976,392, P439,488.441 and P239,873,512 as at
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, pertains to excess payments over par value
from investors over par value and on reissuance of treasury shares,

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (NAVPS)

NAVPS is computed 2s follows:

Note 2015 2014
Toral equity P6,559,850,770  P232580,742
Outstanding shares 12 362,398,439 206,604,712
Deposit for future stock subsctiptions 12 5,394,543,761 -
5,756,942,200 206,694,712
NAVPS P 11395 P 1.1252

NAVPS is based on issued, outstanding and fully paid shares plus shares to be issued on
deposits for future stock subscriptions. The expected cash outflow on redemption of these
shares is equivalent to computed NAVPS as at reporting period.

INTEREST INCOME

This account consists of interest income on the following:

Notes 2015 2014 2013
Special savings deposits 8 P 742609  P1410,187  P2834202
Held-to-maturity investments ' 9 16,918,612 2,815,016 -
Cash in banks 6 70,213 165,432 130,125

P24,414,915  P4390,635  P2,964327

Interest income is recorded gross of final withholding tax which is shown as
“Income Tax Expense” account in the statements of comprehensive income,

Average interest rates of investments and cash in banks in 201 5, 2014 and 2013 are as
follows:

2015 2014 2013
--Special savings deposits ' 2.22% 1.89% 0.51%
Held-to-matutity investments . 4.11% 1.75% -
Cash in banks 0.20% 0.20% 0.27%
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EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is based on the following
data:

2015 2014 2013

Profic (Loss) for the year P 20,968,473 P 46,934 (P 1,084,254)
Weighted average number of shares: .

Issued and outstanding 361,795,756 289,154,442 99,234,368

Potential dilutive shares 695,367,974 31,164,416 182,731,369
Weighted ‘average number of

outstanding shares for the purpose

of computing diluted earnings per

share 1,057,163,730 320,318,858 281,965,737
Basic earnings (loss) per share’ P 0.0580 P 00002 (P  0.011)
Diluted earnings(loss) per share P 00198 P 00001 (P  0.006)

The deposits for future stock subscriptions as at December 31, 2013 are anti-dilutive and
therefore, diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share of P0.011.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Assets and liakilities measured af fair value on a recurring basis

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to fair value are observable.

Note Level 1 Level 2 Total
December 31, 2015
Special savings deposits -8B P - P4,266,040,000 P4,266,040,000
Investments in UITF 8 709,251,958 - 709,251,958

P709,251,958 _ P4,266,040,000 P4,975,291,958

December 31, 2014
Special savings deposits 8 P - P 143,900,000 P 143,900,000

The fair values of the special savings deposits are based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prevailing market interest rates.

UITFs are valued at their pubiished Net Asset Value per Unit (NAVPUS) as at reporting

_.date. -
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Finandal asseis and labikities not measured at fair value

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are shown below:

2015 2014
Carrying Carrying
Notes Amounts Fair Values Amounts Fair Values
Financial Assets
Cash in banks "6 P 44,037,682 P 44,037,682 P 13522080 P 13,522,080
Held-to-marurity investments 9 1,517,679,790 1,499,850,806 83,786,523 83,661,562
Accrued interest receivable 7 27,906,835 27,906,835 740,073 740,073

P1,589,624,307  P1,571,795,323 P 98,048,676 P 97,923,715

Financizal Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other

payables 10 P 2,778,873 P 2,778,873 P 8678367 P 8,678,367
Payable to fund manager 11 2,091,286 2,091,286 689,584 689,584

P 4,870,159 P 4,870,159 P 9,367,951 P 9,367,951

The difference between the carrying amount of accrued expenses and other payables
disclosed in the statements of financial position and the amount disclosed in this note
pertains to withholding taxes and documentary taxes that are not considered financial
liabilities. '

Cash in banks, accrued interest receivable, payable to fund manager and accrued expenses
and other payables have short-term maturities, hence, their carrying amounts are their fair
values.

INCOME TAXES

Details of income tax expense are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Final tax P2,882,248  P1,565,690 P580,145
MCIT . - 1,800 11,186
P2,882,248  P1,567,580 P591,331

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit (loss)
multiplied by 30% is as follows:

- - - - 2015 T 2014 2013
Accounting profit (loss) before tax P23,850,721 P1,614,514 (P 492,923)
Tax expense (benefit) at 30% 7,155,216 484,354 (147,877)
Adjustment for income subject to
to lower tax rate (4,442,226) 248,500 (309,153)
Tax effects of:
Unrecognized net operating
loss carry-over (NOLCQ) 2,384,652 832,836 1,037,175
Unrecognized MCIT - - 1,890 11,186
Net realized gains on investments (1,708,094) - -

Net unrealized pains on investments (507,300) - L.

B P2,882,248 P1,567,580 P 591,331

T
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Details of the Company’s NOLICO are as follows:

Year Year of Beginning 2015
Incurred  Expiry Balance Addidons Expired Balance
2012 2015 P6,044203 P - P (6,044,203} P -
2013 2016 3,457,250 - - 3,457,250
2014 2017 2,776,121 - - 2,776,121
2015 2018 - 7,948,839 - 7,948,839
P12,277,574 P7,948839  (P6,044,203) 14,182,210
Details of MCIT are as follows:
Year Applied Applied
Incurred  Amount Previous Year Current Year Expired Unapplied Expiry Date
2012 P 698 P - P - P 698 P . 2015
2013 11,186 - - - 11,186 2016
2014 1,890 - - - 1,890 2017
P13,774 P - P - P 698 P 13,076

Deferred income tax on NOLCO and MCIT were not recognized since Management
believes that future taxable income will not be available against which the deferred income

tax can be utilized.

The Company’s interest income from special savings deposits and held-to-maturity
investments are already subjected to final tax and are thercfore excluded from the
computation of taxable income for RCIT and MCIT.

CONTINGENCY

The Company has no pending legal cases as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 that may have a
material effect on the Company’s financial position and resuits of operations.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s actvities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, which includes
interest rate and equity price risks, credit risk and liquidity tisk. The Fund Manager exerts best
efforts to anticipate events that would negatively affect the value of the Company's assets
and take approptiate actions to counter these risks, However, there is no guarantee that the
strategies will work as intended. The policies for managing specific risks are summarized _
below--- - - - - o

Market risk I

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates
and movements in NAVPU of investments in UITF. There has been no change in the
manner in which the Company manages and measures the risk,
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial '
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest.

The primary source of the Company's interest rate risk relates to cash in banks, special
savings deposits and held-to-marurity investments. Interest rates of these financial assets are

disclosed in Notes 6,9 and 15.

The risk is managed by the Fund Manager by actively monitoring the prevailing interest rate
cnvironment. The duration of the portfolig is reduced during periods of rising rates and
widening credit spreads to maximize interest income potential. Conversely, the same is
increased during periods of falling rates and narrowing credit spreads.

A 50 basis points increase or decrease in the interest rates had been determined for sensitiviry
analysis based on the exposure to interest rates for financial assets at FVTPL and loans
receivables at the end of each reporting period. The same is used for reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents Management’s assessment of the
reasonable effect of the maximum possible movement in interest rates.

The following table details the increase or decrease in net income if interest rates had been
50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables are held constant for the years ended

2015, 2014, and 2013:

Change in

Increase (Dectease) in Net Income
Interest rates

2015 2014 2013
+50 basis (P14,772,273) (P501,394) (P767,694)
-50 basis 14,772,273 501,394 767,694

Equity price risk
The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising from investments in UITF.

The risk is managed by the Fund Managcr by actively monitoriné the movements in NAVPU
of investtnents in UITF.

Based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of each repotting period, if NAVPU of
investments in UITF had been 2% higher or lower, profit or loss for the year ended
December 31, 2015 would have increased or decreased by P9,746,030.

Other than intetest and equity price risks discussed above, there are no other market risks
which significanty affect the Company's performance.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing
only with creditworthy counterparties, 43 a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults, and transacts only with entities that are rated with equivalent of investment grade of
“High” down to “Satisfactory”. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies,
when available. If the information is not available, the Company uses other publicly available
financial information and its own trading records to rate its major counterpartics. The
Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored
and the aggregate valuc of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved

counterparties.
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The following carrying amounts of financial assets recorded in the financial statements,
which represent the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account the value of any collateral obtained are as follows:

Notes 2015 2014
Cash in banks P 44,037,682 P 13,522,080
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 8 4,266,040,000 143,900,000
Held-to-maturity investments 9 1,517,679,790 83,786,523
Accrued interest receivable 7 27,906,835 740,073

P5,855,664,307 P241,948,676

There were no past due nor impaired financial assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The following table details the credit quality of the neither past due nor impaired financial
assets:

Neither Past Due nor Impaired

Notes High Grade
2015
Cash in banks P 44,037,682
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 4,266,040,000
Hleld-to-maturity investments 9 1,517,679,790
Accrued interest receivable 7 27,906,835

P 5,855,664,307

2014

Cash in banks p 13,522,080
Financial assets at fair value through profic or loss 8 143,900,000
Held-to-matusity investments 9 83,786,523
Accrued interest receivable 7 740,073

P 241,948,676

The Company uses internal ratings to determine the credit quality of its financial assets,

These have been mapped to the summary rating below:

High Grade - applies to highly rated financial obligors, strong corporate counterparties and
personal borrowers with whom the Company has excellent repayment experience.

Satisfactory Grade - applies to financial assets that are performing as expected, including loans
and advances to small and medium sized entities and recently established businesses.

m/imptab!e Grade - applies to countérpartics with risk profiles that are subject to closer

monitoring and scrutiny with the objective of managing risk and moving accounts to
improved rating category.

Low Grade - applies to risks that are neither past due nor expected to result in loss but where
the Company requires a workout of the relationship with counterpardes unless an early
reduction in risk is achievable.

Liguidizy risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Company encounters difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset, The Company aims to maintain an approptate level of hqmd.tty which means having
sufficient liquidity to be able to meet all obhgauons promptl imder !foreseeable adverse
circumstances, while not havlng eXCOpHTRL ;
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The Company maintains at least five percent of the fund in liquid/semi-liquid assets in the
form of cash in banks and spécial savings deposits to assure necessary liquidity. ‘This is also
in compliance to SEC Circular 12 series of 2013, Amendments to ICA Rule 35-1.

The Fund Manager manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and acrual
cash flows, and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The table had been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be
required to pay.

Less than Three Months to
One Month One Year Total
2015
Accrued expenses and other
payables ‘ P1,516,352 P 1,262,521 P2,778,873
Payable to fund manager 2,091,286 - 2,091,286
P3,607,638 P 1,262,521 4,870,159
2014
Accrued expenses and other _
payables P8,612,774 P65,593 P8,678,367
Payable to fund manager 689,584 - 689,584
P9,302,358 P65,593 9,367,951

The difference between the carrying amount of accrued expenses disclosed in the statements
of financial position and the amount disclosed in this note pertains to taxes that are not
considered financial liabilities,

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its financial assets.
The table had been drawn up based on the contractual maturities of the financial assets
including intetest that will be earned on those assets, except when the Company anticipates
that the cash flows will occur in a different period.

Average
Effective Less than One  One Year to Five Five Years to Ten Total
Interest Rate Year Years Years
2015
Cash in banks 0.20% P 44,037,682 P - P - P 44,037,682
Financial assets at fair
value through profit
. -orloss ... . - 222% -4,277,410,430 - - - 4,277,410,430 ~
Held-to-maturity
tnvestments 4.11% 222,882,350 670,332,862 852,449,042 1,745,664,254
P4,544,330,462  P670,332,862  P852,449,042  P6,067,112,366
2014
Cash in banks 0.20% P 13,522,080 p - P P 13,522,080
Finandal assets at fair
value through profit 143,955 813
or loss 1.89% 143,955,833 . .
Held-to-maturiry !
investments 1.75% 84,599,407 - 84,599,407
P 325,863,843 p - p - P 325,863 843

The Company expects to meet its obligations from operating cash flows, proceeds from

maturing financial assets and sale of financial assets at FVTPL.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund Manager manages the Company’s capital to ensure that the Company will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the
optimization of the mix of high-quality debt from domestic issuers.

The Company is gutded by its Investment Policies and Legal Limitations. All the proceeds
from the sale of shares, including the original subscription payments at the time of
incorporation constituting the paid-in capital, is held by the pertinent custodian banks.

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued capital as disclosed in Note 12.

The Fund Manager manages the Company’s capital and NAVPS, as disclosed in Notes 12,
13, 14 to ensure that the Company’s net asset value remains competitive and appealing to
prospective investors. ) :

The Company is also governed by the following fundamental investment policies:
a. It does not issue senior securities;

b. It does not intend to incur any debt or borrowing. In the event that borrowing is
necessary, it can do so only if, at the time of its incurrence or immediately thereafter, there
is asset coverage of at least 300% for all its borrowings;

¢. It does not participate in 2ny underwriting or selling group in connection with the public
distribution of securities, except for its own share capital;

d. It generally maintains a diversified portfolio. Industry concentrations may vary at any time
depending on the investment manager’s view on the prospects;

e. " It does not invest directly in real estate properties and developments;
f. It does not purchase or sell commodity futures contracts;

g It does not engage in lending operations to related parties such as the members of the
Board of Directors, officers of the Company and any afiiliates, or affiliated corporations of

the Company;,

h. The asset mix in each type of security is determined from time to tirne, as warranted by
economic and investment conditions; and

i Itdoes not change its investment objectives without the prior approval of a majority of its
shareholders.

The Investment Policies refer to the following:

3. Iavestment Objective - to generate income in Philippine Pesos consistent with prudent
management of the Fund’s assets.

b.  Benchmark - HSBC Money Market Index. .

‘¢ Asset Allocation Range - the Company allocates its funds available for investments

among cash and other deposit substitutes and fixed-income securities based on certain
proportion as approved by Management.

Other matters covered in the investment policy include the fees due to be paid to the Fund
Manager with management and distribution fees each set at an annual rate of .40% of the net
assets attributable to shareholders on each valuation day.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company is in compliance with the above
requirements and minimum equity requirement of the SEC of P50,000,000.
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The equity ratio at year-end is as follows:

2015 2014
Equity , P6,559,850,770 P232,580,742
Total assets 6,564,938,672 241,959,781
Equity ratio 0.99:1 0.96:1

Management believes that the above ratios are within the acceptable range.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On March 14, 2016, the SEC approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital of
5,600,000,000 shares.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE (BIR) UNDER REVENUE REGULATIONS
NO. 15-2010 :

The following information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the 2015
taxable year ate presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and are not required part of the
basic financial statements.

Documentary stamp tax

Documentary stamp taxes paid by the Company during 2015 amounted to P28,188
representing taxes in connection with the issuance of stock certificates by the Company to its
shareholders. The documentaty stamp tax being paid by the Company to the BIR includes
those charged against the shareholder’s investment for stock certificate issuances in excess of
four inter- fund transfers per calendar year.

Other taxer and licenses

Derails of the Company’s other taxes and licenses and permit fees in 2015 are as follows:

Charged to Operating Expehses

Business tax P 16,423
Filing fees 5,050
Residence or community tax 2,243
Others ~ 14,121
R _ ‘“A - _ P37837
Withbolding taxes |

Expanded withholding taxes on management and transfer fees accrued and paid by the
Company in 2015 amounted to P184,889.

E
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of th? Company were reviewed and endorsed by the Audit and -
Compliance Committee for the approval of the Board of Directors on March 15, 2016.
The Board of Directors approved the issuance of the financial statements also on
March 15, 2016. I :
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5" Avenue carner 26' Sireet
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig 1634
Philippines

Tel: +63 2 581 9000
Fax; +63 2 B69 3676
www.deloitte.com/ph

BOA/PRC Reg, No. 0004
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.
{An Open-end Investment Company)

2 Floor, Sun Life Centre, 5 Avenue corner Rizal Drive
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

We have audited the financial statements of Sun Life Prosperity Money Market Fund, Inc. as at
Decemnber 31, 2015 and 2014 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015
in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, on which we have rendered an unqualified
opinion dated March 15, 2016.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information on the attached schedules showing the
reconciliation of the retained earnings available for dividend declaration, the list of all effective
accounting standards and interpretations and the other supplementary information shown in
Schedules A-H as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015, as required by the Securities and
Exchange Commission under SRC Rule 68, as amended, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not required part of the basic financial statements. These information are the
responsibility of Management and have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Navarro Amper & Co.
BOA Registration No. 0004, valid from December 4, 2015 to December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4, issued on January 7, 2016; effective untl January 6, 2019, Group A

TIN 005299331

"By:

Fifincis B. Albalate

Partner
CPA License No. 0088499
SEC A.N. 0104-AR-4, issued on June 30, 2015; effective until June 29, 2018, Group A

TIN 120319015
BIR A.N. 08-002552-32-2014, issued on October 3, 2014; effectwe until Octg_bcnﬁ,,Zﬂll—

PTR No. A-2798353, issued on January 6, 2016, Taguig Clty
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Taguig City, Philippines _
March 15, 2016 B'PR ! f '}mi:
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DECLARATION

As at December 31, 2015

SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.

2nd Floor, Sun Life Centre, 5th Avenue corner Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

Items Amount
Unappropriated Retained Eamings, beginning P 6,775,240
Adjustments:
Treasury shares as of December 31, 2014 (217,682,783)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted, beginning

P (210,907,543)

Net income based on the face of AFS 20,968,473
Adjustments for non-actual (gains) losses

Effects of movements in accumulated unrealized 1 gain during the year {1,690,999)
Net Income Actual/Realized 19,277,474
Add: Treasury shares reissued during the year 174,904,726
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted, ending P (16,725,343)




Sun Life Prosperity Money Matket Fund, Inc.

List of Effective Standards and Inte

(PERS)

characteristics

Financial Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectves and qualitative
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RIS
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rpretations under the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1
(Revised)

First-time Adoption of Pbt'lz'ppz;r:e Finandal
Reporting S tandards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of
an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associare :

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions
| for First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PERS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adapiers

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Date for. First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Ioans

Annual lmsprovemenis to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycte -
Amendments to PFRS 1: First-Time Adoption of
PFRS

Annual Improvements ts PFRSs 2011-2013 Cyele -
Amendments to PFRS 1: Firse-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards
(Changes to the Basts jor Conclusions only)

PFRS2 - —

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

Arnnual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle -
Amendments to PFRS 2:Definition of Vesting
Condition

PFRS 3
(Revised)

Business Combinations

Annsial Improvements to PFRS, 7 2010-2012 Cyele -
Amendments to PFRS 3: Aavounting for

Contingent Constderation) i
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Annual Impravements 1o PFRS.
Amendments to PFRS 3: Swpe of Exaption for

Joint Venturer

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Einandal
Guarantee Contracty

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Amendment to PFRS 5: No-current Assets Held
| for Sale and Discontinued Operations Revlassification
Guidanoe*

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources .

PFRS 7

Finandal Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclasstfication of Financial Assets

Amendrents to PAS 39 and PFRS 7
Reciassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date
and Transition

Amendments to PERS 7: Inproving Disclosures
about Finandal Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosurer - Trangfers
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Finandal Assets and Financial Liabilisies

Amendmeats to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Ditclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Hedge Acaounting
Disclosures

TAmendments to PERS 7: Finanaal Instruments;

Disclossres - Servicing Contracts *

PFRS 8

Operating Segrmentr

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle -
Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of S egrments
and Reconciliation of Segment Assets

PFRS 9

Finandal Instruments: Classification and
Measurement of Financal A.r.ren:‘ and Liabilities*®

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures *

Amendments to PFRS 9: Phase III - Hedge

Accounting Disclosures *

|
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Amcndments to PFRS 9 Mmor revisions ana’
Introduction of New Impairment Modet*

DT

Appliabled

3 & ’*r"-
A

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statementr

Amendments to PFRS 10: Consalidated
Financial Statement: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transttion Guidance
and Inpestment Entites

Amendments to PFRS 10: Conrodidared
Financal Statements: Gain or Loss Recognition
Resulting from the sale or contribution of a subsidiary
fo an aisociate or joint venture. *

Amendments to PFRS 10: Ineestment Entities —
Applying the Consolidation Exceeptions *

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 1: ]amtAfrangemmt:
Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Armuﬂtz’ng for
Aequisitions of Interests in Joint Operations *

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance
and Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entitres —
Applying the Consolidanion Exceptions *

PFRS 13

Fatr Value Measurement

Annual Improvements 1o PFRSs'2010-2012 Cycle -
Amendments to PFRS 13: Fa:r Value
Measurement ™

(Amendments to the Basis of Conclusions Only, with
Consequential Amendments to the Bases of
Conclusions of Other Standards) |

Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exveption

Anrnual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle -

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts *

Philippine Ac

counting Standards

PAS1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Page 3 0of 9
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Amcndments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Pﬂﬁab/e
Finanaal Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liguidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of
Other Comprebensive Income

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle -
Amendments to PAS 1: Comparative Information

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Financial
Statements — Clarifications *

PAS 2

Tnventories

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in 'Acw:mn'r:‘g
Estimates and Errors

PAS 10

Euvents after the Reporting Period

PAS 11

Construciion Contracts

PAS 12

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Undertying Assets

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Eqmpmnt'

Annsual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle -
Amendments to PAS 16, Servicing Equipment

Annual Improvements o PFRSs 2010-2012 Cyete -
Amendments to PAS 16: Rewluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Acoummlated
Depredation

Amendments to PAS 16: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation*

Amendmeats to PAS 16: Agnm/rure Bearer
Planss® . . :

PAS 17

Leases

PAS 18

Revenue

PAS 19
{Amended)

Emplayee Benefits (2011)

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Emplayee Contributions

Amendment to PAS 19: Employer Benefits —
Disoount Rate Based on High Quality Corporate
Bonds*

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

Page 4 of 9




The Effects qf C/)ange: in Famgn Excbange Rare.f

Amendment: Net [nvestment in a Foreign
Operation

PAS 23
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24

Related Party Disclosures

(Revised)

Annual Improverents to PFRST 2010-2012 Cyele -
Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management
Personne!

PAS 26

Aeounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
Plans

PAS 27
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 27: Transition Guidance
and Investrment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in
Separate Financial Stavements *

PAS 28

Investiments in Associates and Joint Ventures

(Amended)

|\ PAS 28: Investments in Arsodates and Joint

Ventures (2011): Partial Gain or Loss Recognition
| for Transaction between an Invesior and its Associate

or JI7* i

Amendments to PAS 28: Inwstment Entities -
Applying rhe Consolidation Exceptions *

PAS 29

Finandal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 32

Firanaal Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

_| Liguidation .

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Pustabls
Finandal Instruments and Obkgman.r Arising on

Amendment to PAS 32: C/aﬂyicatzon of Rights

Lssuer

Annual Improvements 1o PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle -
Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Equity
Distributions

Amendments to PAS 32: Oﬁem'ng Finanagal
Arsets and Financal Liakilities

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financal Reporting

Page5ofg
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Annual Improvements
Amendments to PAS 34: Interim Reporting of
Segment Assets

Amendment to PAS 34: Interins Financial
Reporting: Clarification of Term *

PAS 36

Impairment of Asseis

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Finandal Assets

PAS 37

Provitions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Asrets

PAS 38

Intangible Assers

Annual Improvements t9 PFRSs 2010-2012 Cyele -
Amendments to PAS 38; Rewsluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Acoumulated
Amortigation

Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of
Acoeptable Merhods of Amortization*

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Remgnition and
Measarerment

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge
Acwunting of Forecast Intragrosp Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Farr Vaiue Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PERS 4: Financal
Guarantee Contracis

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 3% and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Finandal Assets - Effective Date
and Transition |

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged ltems

Amendment to PAS 39: Nowtion of Derivatives
and Continuation of Fledge Accounting

Amendment to PAS 39: Hedpe Arvonnting
Application

PAS 40

Investment Property

]
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Ammal Improvements to PFRSs 2077-2013 Qr/e -
Amendments to PAS 40: Clarifying the
Interrelationship of IFRS 3 and LAS 40 When
Classifying Property as Investment Property or
Owner-Occupied Property
PAS 41 Agriculure _ v
Amendments to PAS 41: Agriauliure: Bearer v
Plantr*
Philippine Interpretations ,
IFRIC1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration v
and Sirmilar Liabilities
IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Ca-aperafivé Entities and Similar v
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Coniains a v
Lease
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rebhabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Liabikities arising from Parﬂapa}ing tn a Specfic v
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Finandal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC 8 Seope of PFRS 2 v
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives \
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC10 | Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v
TFRIC 13 Customer Layalty Programsmes v
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- v
14, Prepayments of @ Minimum Funding
Reguirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash A.r:;m to Owners
IFRIC 18 Tranifers of Assets from Customers
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabifities with Equity
Instruments . A W -
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Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

S

Mine
IFRIC21 | Levies v
S1C-7 Introduction of the Euro v
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to v
Operating Activitres k
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
SIC-21 Inwme Tasces- Recovery of Revalsed Non-depreciable v
Assets ,
SIC-25 Income Tases - Changes in the Tax Status of an v
Entity or its Sharehoiders
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving v
the Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements. Disclosures v
SIC-31 Revensee - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
PIC Q&A | Revere Revognition for Sales of Praperty Units v
No. 2006-01 | Under Pre-Compietion Contracts
PIC Q&A | Clarification of Criteria for Exermption from v
No. 2006-02 | Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements .
PIC Q&A | Valuation of Bank Real and Other Properties v
No. 2007-03 |.Aqguired (ROPA) .
PIC Q&A  |Rate Used in Discounting Post-er loyment Benefit v
No. 2008-01 | Obiigations '
PIC Q&A | Aavunting for Government Loans with Low Interest v
No. 2008-02 | Rates under the Amendments to PAS 20
|PIC Q&A _ | Financal Statements Prepared on @ Basis Other than v
No. 2009-01 | Going Concern
PIC Q&A | Rate Used in Determining the Fair Value of v
No. 200-01 | Government Securities in the Phibppines
PIC Q&A | Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
No. 2010-02
PIC Q&A | Current/ non-current Classification of a Callable v
No. 2010-03 | Term Loan ‘
PIC Q&A Cormrmon Control Business Combinations v
No. 2011-02 _
PIC Q&A | Aaounting for Inter-company Loans \
No. 2011-03 '

f%deB




T
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No. 201104

PIC Q&A Fair Value or Revaluation as Deemed Cost v
No. 2011-05

PIC Q&A [ Acguisition of Investment Properties — Asset
No. 2011-06 | Aeguisition or Business Combination?

PIC Q&A | Application of the Pooking of Interests Method for v
No. 2012-01 | Business Combinations of Entifies under Common
Control in Consolidared Financial Statements

PIC Q&A  |Costof a New Building Constructed on Site of a v
No. 2012-02 | Previous Buzlding _
PIC Q&A | Acvunting for Emplgyee Benefits under a Defined v

No. 2013-03 | Contribution Plan Subject to Requirement of

Republic Act (RA) 764 1: The Philippine Refirement

Law ' .

* These are the new and revised accounting standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and
Approved by Financial Reporting Standard Council (FRSC) which are effective after the reporting period ended December
31, 2015.
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SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.

2nd F! Sun Life Centre, Sth Avenue, Com izal

rive, Bonifaci

1, Tagui

Additional Requirements for Issuers of Securities to the Public
Required by the Securities and Exchange Commission
As at December 31, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents

Financial Assets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties,

and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related parties)

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during

the Consolidaton of Financial Statements
Intangible Assets - Other Assets
Long-Term Debt

Indebtedness to Related Parties

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuefs

Capital Stock
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SCHEDULE A - FINANCIAL ASSETS
As at December 31, 2015

Nl.lmbu of Shaces or Amount shown in the |Income Received and
Name of Issuing Entity and Association of Each Issue Il’nncipal Amount of Balance Sheet Accrued
Bills, Notes and Bonds
Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds Issued by the Nat'l. Government 1,469,000,000 P1,517,679,970 P16,918,612
Investments in UITF
SB Peso Money Market Fund 08,475,426 124,113,995
PNB Institutional Money Market Fund 360,455,898 370,560,197
Rizal Peso Cash Management Fund 94,613,619 96,341,926
UCPB Cash Management Fund 57,439,751 72,206,994
BPI Money Macket Fund 200,973 46,028,846
611,185,666 709,251,958
Special savings deposits:
Union Bank of the Philippines 860,000,000 860,000,000
Security Bank Corporation 780,000,000 780,000,000
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation 763,000,000 763,000,000
Maybank ATR Kim Eng 861,010,000 861,010,000
PNB Securities 900,030,000 900,030,000
Citibank, N.A. 102,000,000 102,000,000
4,266,040,000 4,2066,040,000 7,426,090
1
TOTAL 6,346,225,666 P6,492,971,928 P24,344,702
pgvs”“&%f’flgz@\?i{:i é_)r.-c;. etk
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SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC,
20d Floor Sun Life C : C Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global, Taguiz Ci

SCHEDULE F - INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES
As at December 31, 2015

Name of Related Party 'Relationship Balaace at b.egmmng Balance a end of
of period period
Sun Life Asset Management Company, Inc. Fund Manager P689,584 P2,091,286
Board of Directors Directors - 14,052
TOTAL . P;89,584 P2,105,338
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2nd Floor Sun Life G Sth Avenue, C Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global, Taguig Ci

SCHEDULE H - CAPITAL STOCK

As at December 31, 2015
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, Number of Shares Number of Shares Held By
Number of Shares Shnlri:r;:l::::gin dl o trif::sw\cvi:;;ts Directors,
Authorized h P ', ' Related Parties Officers and Others
Outstunding conversion and Emplovees
Title of Issue other rights ey
Share Capitu!
Ordinary Shares 400,000,000 400,000,000 - 164,118,305 5 235,881,690
Treasury Shares 3 (37,601,561) - ; . (37.601,561)
TOTAL 400,000,000 362,398,439 - 164,118,305 5 198,280,129
M i T
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SUN LIFE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC.
Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators and Financial Ratios
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

2015 2014
Current/ Liguidty Ratios
a. Current ratio 1290.30:1 25.80:1
b. Quick ratio - 1031.06:1 25.80:1
c. Cash ratio 8.66 1.44:1
d. Days in receivable N/A N/A
e. Working capital ratio 1.00:1 - 0.96:1
f. Net working capital to sales ratio 217.87:1 51.86:1
g Defensive Interval Ratio 657,883.62:1 30,342.46:1
Sokvency Ratios
a. Long-term debt to equity ratio 0.00 0.00
b. Debt to equity ratio 0.00 0.04:1
¢. Long term debt to total asset ratio 0.00 0.00
d. Total debt to asset ratio 0.00 0.04:1
Asset to equity ratio 1.00 1.04:1
Interest rate coverage ratio N/A N/A
Profitability Ratio
a. Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) margin 0.79:1 0.36:1
b. Earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) margin 0.79:1 0.36:1
c. Pre-tax margin 0.79:1 0.36:1
d. Effective tax rate 12.08% 97.09%
e. Post-tax margin ! 0.70:1 0.01:1
f. Return on equity ; 0.62% 0.02%
g Return on asset ' 0.62% 0.02%
Capital intensity ratio 218.04:1 53.95:1
N/A N/A

Dividend payout ratio




$UN LIPE PROSPERITY MONEY MARKET FUND, INC
Schedube Required under SRC Rube 64 o

1, Percentage of Invesimen in 4 Single Enterprise 10 Nev Asser Valve
A3 af Decembes 11, 2015 end December 31, 2014

2013 bl
lnvemc:]v:t()htmﬂ Net Aniet Value % over NAV 0:::""3:]';") NetAuser Value  Yoover NAY
Trenyury Billy
PIBLI1214ACID - - . 9.836.051 232,580,742 1.23%
P1BLOS15GA013 149,997,816 6.559,850,T70 L29% - - -
Treasury Notes (ISIN)
UST18286B)5% TasH 655%,350,T70 1.76% - - -
N3ass414m3) " 420,804,282 6,559A50. 770 641% . . .
USTLAZB4BXMA 103,735,154 6.553.A50,770 1.50% . - .
ENO%41758 51.192,59% 6353.350.T70 oY . .
Ep179238 20526782 6.552.250,TM 0% - - .
PIRDOS14TI6AY - - - 30756277 232,580,142 25.26%
PIBDO413G Y - . - 15,193,295 132,580,741 65I%
Investmenis in UITFy )
5B PESC MONBY MARKET FIINDY 124,113,995 6,559,850,770 L%
PNB INSTITUTIONAL MONIY MARKET FUND 370,500,197 6,359,850,770 5.65%
RIZAL PESO-CASH MANAGREMENT FUND 96341920 6,559,850, 710 147%
UCPB CASH MANAGEMENT FUND 72,206,994 6,539.050,770 1100 . '
BRI MONBY MARKET FLIND 5028 846 6,550.850. 710 L o
i, Tots lavestneru of the Fund to the Outatanding Sccuridics of an [nvestee Company
As of December 1, 2013 and December 35, 2014
lmm{::i;’\f‘“ﬂ QS::::::‘S % over Invesren ﬂ;::‘:“‘:,‘:::!) MNet Adiet Value % over Invesiee
‘Treasury Bills
PIDL1214AD10 ' - - - 9836951 3OO0 0%
PIBLD61SGOY 149:99‘.‘.11(- 4,410,000,000 340% - - .
Treasury Noces {ISIN)
UST192845)30A TILIBLMH]  44,100,000,00,000 oY - -
X50554144831 420,804,232 20.000,000,000 21040% T . .
UST1B2B8DN+HA WD 30,800500,000000 0.0003% . . .
BROM175A 55,232,595 24,510,530,000.000 Q.0002% - - . ta
BRI1T233 20,520,782 3,000,000,000,000 0DNTH - . .
PLBDOS13E6AS - . - 53736277 25,214,380 000 on%
PIBDO415G 203 - - - 15,193,294 2,781,490,000 01T%
tovestments in UITF !
58 PESO MONEY MARKET FUND 98,478,426 14,776 535,184 06TV
PNB INSTITUTIONAL MONEY MARKET PUND 360,455,858 5,233496,719 6A40%
RIZAL PESO CASH MANAGRMENT FUND 24,613,619 3852.846.113 2467
UCPB CASH MANAGEMIINT FUND 57,439,751 1,508 DOZ0TE RESL O
BPI MONBY MARKET FUND 0057 4,133,330,000 a.00ve

U1 Toral lavestment in Liguld o¢ Sem:Liquid Asscis to Toiad Asects
At of Decerbet 31, 2013 wid Drcesnber 3, 2014

2015 I0H4

Tonl Liquid sad Semi-Liquid Assczs 6.561,938,672 24195970
TOTAL ASSETS G.SG‘;JJMTZ . 241,959,111
Total Liquid and Semi-Liquid Assets 1o Torl Awscrs 100.00% 100.00%
fv, Total Opersting Expenaes 1o Total Net Worth
Arof Lecember 3, 2015 sad Detcmber M, 2014
: P
08 014
Total Opeerting Bxperses 748,830 TN a4
Aveenge Dily Ner Woerh 1344498 M7 30,366 442
Totad Operatng Bxpenses to Towl Net Woeth 059% 0.78%
v, Towl Assews to Toanl Borrowings
Trmssmae—— “ Ab of December 11, 2054 'sndd Decernber 31, 2004 o - et ) -
'
201% 04
Total Assens £.564,918,672 180T
Totn Borrmang 5047.902 2379030
' Tord Ancn m Ton! Boreowings 129030 2580

** Figures not svlable
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